
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 

Eastern Area 
Planning Committee 
Wednesday 8 October 2025 at 6.30 pm 
 

in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Market Street, Newbury, RG14 5LD 
 
This meeting will be streamed live here: Link to Eastern Area Planning Committee broadcasts  

You can view all streamed Council meetings here: Link to West Berkshire Council - Public 
Meetings  

If members of the public wish to make representations to the Committee on any of the planning 
applications being considered at this meeting, they can do so either remotely or in person. 
Members of the public who wish to make representations must notify the Planning Team by no 
later than 4.00pm on 7 October 2025 by emailing planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk. 
 

 

Members Interests 
 

Note: If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on 
this agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers. 
 

 

Date of despatch of Agenda: Tuesday 30 September 2025 
 

Further information for members of the public 
 

Plans and photographs relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting 
can be viewed by clicking on the link on the front page of the relevant report. 
 

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents referred to 
in Part I reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148 or email 
planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk. 
 

Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the Council’s 
website at www.westberks.gov.uk. 
 

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to the Democratic Services Team by 
emailing executivecycle@westberks.gov.uk.  

 
 

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting 

Public Document Pack

https://www.westberks.gov.uk/easternareaplanninglive
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive
mailto:planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/
mailto:executivecycle@westberks.gov.uk


Agenda - Eastern Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday 8 October 2025 
(continued) 

 

 
 

 

To: Councillors Alan Macro (Chairman), Richard Somner (Vice-Chairman), 
Jeremy Cottam, Paul Kander, Ross Mackinnon, Geoff Mayes, 
Justin Pemberton, Vicky Poole and Clive Taylor 

Substitutes: Councillors Jane Langford, Janine Lewis, Tom McCann, Biyi Oloko, 
Christopher Read and Joanne Stewart 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Part I Page No. 
 
1.    Apologies for absence  
 To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any). 

 
 

2.    Minutes 5 - 14 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this 

Committee held on 6 August 2025. 
 

 

3.    Declarations of Interest  
 To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any 

personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on 
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

4.    Schedule of Planning Applications  
 (Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the 

right to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest 
and participation in individual applications). 
 

 

(1)     25/00140/FUL - Land Adjacent To Linnet Close, Tilehurst 15 - 56 
 Proposal:  Erection of 4no. residential dwellings comprising 4 x 

2-bedroom semi-detached houses including 2no. 
parking spaces per dwelling and private gardens. 
Creation of new vehicular access from City Road. 
Provision of accessible greenspace to rear of site 

Location: Land Adjacent To Linnet Close, Linnet Close, 
Tilehurst 

Applicant: James Cooper 

Recommendation: PROVIDED THAT a Section 106 Agreement has 
been completed by 10th December 2025 (or such 
longer period that may be authorised by the 
Development Manager, in consultation with the 
Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Eastern Area 
Planning Committee), to delegate to the 

 

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


Agenda - Eastern Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday 8 October 2025 
(continued) 

 

 
 

Development Manager to GRANT PLANNING 
PERMISSION subject to the conditions listed in the 
report.. 

OR, if a Section 106 Agreement is not completed, to 
delegate to the Development Manager to REFUSE 
PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons listed in 
the report. 

 

 
Background Papers 
 
(a) The West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026. 
(b) The West Berkshire District Local Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the 

Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire, the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire and 
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents. 

(c) Any previous planning applications for the site, together with correspondence and 
report(s) on those applications. 

(d) The case file for the current application comprising plans, application forms, 
correspondence and case officer’s notes. 

(e) The Human Rights Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sarah Clarke 
Executive Director - Resources 
West Berkshire District Council 
 

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Sam Chiverton on telephone (01635) 519824. 



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee 

 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 

WEDNESDAY 6 AUGUST 2025 
 
Councillors Present: Richard Somner (Vice-Chairman), Paul Kander, Ross Mackinnon, 
Geoff Mayes, Justin Pemberton, Vicky Poole and Clive Taylor 
 

Also Present: Sam Chiverton (Apprentice Democratic Services Officer), Paul Goddard (Team 
Leader - Highways Development Control), Emma Nutchey (Principal Planning Officer), Simon 
Till (Development Control Team Leader) and Lydia Theos 
 

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Alan Macro and Councillor Jeremy 
Cottam 
 

 

PART I 
 

1. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2025 were approved as a true and correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Justin Pemberton declared an interest in Agenda Item 4(1) as, in his position 
of Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Regeneration, he held responsibility 
for setting Council policies around local business growth and rural economy. He reported 
that, as his interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the 
matter. 

3. Schedule of Planning Applications 

(1) 25/01035/FUL - The Nurseries, Bath Road, Midgham 

1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(1)) concerning Planning 
Application 25/01035/FUL in respect of a change of use to allow retention of four and 
proposed siting of 20 additional storage containers for self storage at The Nurseries, 
Bath Road, Midgham. 

2. Emma Nutchey introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the 
relevant policy considerations and other material planning considerations. In 
conclusion the report detailed that the proposal was acceptable in planning terms 
and officers recommended that the Development Manager be authorised to grant 
planning permission subject to the conditions outlined in the main report.  

3. The Chairman asked Paul Goddard whether he had any observations relating to the 
application. He informed the Committee of the following: 

 The site was to be used by 20 storage containers and was to be accessed via an 
existing access on the A4. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

 He expected vehicle usage was likely to be very low due to the nature of the 
proposed usage. No more than five vehicles in and out per day. 

 He believed it was difficult to sustain refusal on traffic or highways grounds. 

 The site was in a sustainable location with regular bus services. 
4. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Louisa Hoe Yee Lai and Keith Rogers, 

objectors, addressed the Committee on this application. 

Objector Representation 

5. Louisa Hoe Yee Lai and Keith Rogers addressed the Committee. This representation 
can be viewed on the recording:  

Eastern Area Planning Committee - Wednesday 6 August 2025 (15:26) 

Member Questions to the Objector 

6. Members asked questions of clarification and were given the following responses: 

 Louisa Hoe Yee Lai advised that the site was on a slope and as a result the entire site 
was visible from Church View Farm. A barn co owned by Church View Farm and the 
applicant was being used for storage and other activities by the applicant.  

 Louisa Hoe Yee Lai advised that the applicant’s submitted plans informed that it was 
a small agricultural business with operating hours of 7:30am to 5pm Mondays-Fridays 
with ad hoc emergency operations on weekends when required. She noted they were 
operating outside of the prescribed hours.  

 Louisa Hoe Yee Lai had raised with both the applicant and the Council the fact that 
the business was operating outside of its prescribed hours however, it had not 
ceased, and no action had been taken. 

Ward Member Representation 

7. Councillor Christopher Read was unable to attend the Committee however, 
Councillor Richard Somner read a letter on his behalf. This representation can be 
viewed on the recording:  

Eastern Area Planning Committee - Wednesday 6 August 2025 (25:30) 

Member Questions to Officers 

8. Members asked questions of clarification and were given the following responses: 

 Paul Goddard advised that visits could be made to the storage containers without 
large items.  

 Paul Goddard was not aware of any previous planning application that promised to 
measure traffic patterns near the site of the proposal. Emma Nutchey advised she 
had seen nothing referring to this. 

 Emma Nutchey advised an enquiry was made to the Planning Enforcement Team 
earlier in the week and a case had been opened to investigate a number of matters 
on the site, but an enforcement officer had not visited.  

 Simon Till noted that Members were present to consider the application in front of the 
Committee and any matters related to potential breaches of planning consent sat 
outside the consideration of the Committee item.  

 Paul Goddard had considered the position of the entrance in the road when 
recommending the application for approval. He advised that the containers were not 
large and as such they were not expecting large vehicles to visit that particular section 
of the site. He noted that the access had limitations but advised that the proposal was 
unlikely to make the limitations of that access any worse. He highlighted that the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) dictated that an application could only be 

Page 6

https://www.youtube.com/live/nPwwOfjqtco
https://www.youtube.com/live/nPwwOfjqtco?t=1530s


EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

rejected on highways grounds if the impact was severe, a threshold he believed had 
not been met.  

 Paul Goddard noted that sight lines on a 60 mile per hour road should be 215m 
looking in both directions. The access only had sight lines of 85m looking towards the 
east but the deficiencies of the access were not so harmful due to the limited increase 
in access the proposed usage was likely to create.  

 Simon Till advised that the retrospective nature of this application would make it a 
matter for Planning Enforcement to consider, should the Committee be minded to 
reject the proposal.  

 Paul Goddard advised that he was happy to have a condition applied requiring the 
site to include an electric vehicle charging point. However, he did not consider that 
people accessing the site were likely to stay there for very long.  

 Simon Till reminded Members that conditions as set out in the NPPF were for the 
purpose of making an otherwise unacceptable development acceptable. 

 Simon Till advised that planning permission applied to the land unless granting 
personal planning permission which only applied in very particular circumstances 
(none of which applied with this application). He reminded Members that they were 
considering the use of the land.  

 Emma Nutchey advised that there were no hours of access conditions granted on 
previously approved usages. The condition restricting hours of operation was new 
and did not conflict. 

 Emma Nutchey was unsure whether the units had access to a power supply.  

 Emma Nutchey advised that there was a use restriction determining that the site was 
to be used for storage purposes only.  

 Paul Goddard advised that the external highways specialist consultancy, Stewart 
Michael associates, based in Thatcham, had been engaged by the objectors to write 
a report. This had stated similar concerns to the objector regarding the width of the 
access, sight lines and speed of traffic on the A4. 

 Paul Goddard advised that the number of vehicle movements was calculated by 
referring to the Trip Rate Information Computer System (TRICS) National Database 
which included traffic surveys of many different land usages. 

 Paul Goddard advised the road surface was tarmac when entered but became 
rougher further down. He felt that the level of traffic expected, combined with the size 
of vehicle expected to make use of the site, meant it was unlikely that the proposal 
was going to damage the road. He highlighted that the access was private and a 
private matter. 

 Paul Goddard advised that the sight lines on to the A4 had not changed for a long 
time. Guidance had also not changed within the Design Manual for Roads and 
Bridges which applied to the A4, though sight lines had changed to lower speed 
settings with the production of the Manual for Streets in 2007. He did not expect the 
sight lines for major roads to change moving forward.  

 Sight lines of 215m could not be achieved as the land was not in the applicants’ 
control, as a result the most that was achievable was 85m. However, as the access 
was existing, the Committee had to decide whether the proposal had significant 
enough additional impact to justify refusal. 

 Emma Nutchey advised that the condition on opening times did not override 
conditions elsewhere on the site and only the 24 containers referred to within this 
application were to be subject to this condition. She advised that there were six other 
authorised containers on site. 

 Emma Nutchhey informed Members that there was sufficient space within the red line 
for customers to access all of the storage containers on the site. 

Page 7



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

 Paul Goddard advised that the access already had a number of HGV movements in 
and out and had done for decades. Once the containers arrived on the site they were 
likely to remain in situ and as such were not going to require long term access from 
larger vehicles.  

 Emma Nutchey advised that the specific items to be  stored was the responsibility of 
those managing the site and planning  could not control what was stored. 

 Simon Till advised that aspects such as hazardous materials had different permitting 
regimes. 

 Paul Goddard advised that the mitigations for this proposal were the relatively low 
vehicle movement numbers and that they did not necessarily have to apply physical 
works to mitigate.  

Debate 

9. Councillor Justin Pemberton opened the debate by noting there was a certain level of 
inconvenience in living next to a commercial area and that approving this application 
was likely to add to that for the residents of Church View Farm. He accepted the 
comments the objector made about the higher ground the farm was situated on, as 
this would make the activities on the site more visible. He noted that he lived on 
farmland himself and whilst heavy machinery and vehicles could cause an 
inconvenience it created little cause for concern. He advised that he was struggling to 
get past the highways elements and felt that not enough regard had been given to 
the impact of vehicles turning into and out of the site via the A4, highlighting that the 
road bended which greatly increased the risk of an incident. He felt that if one serious 
incident could occur because of the increased vehicle usage, the potential impact 
should have been considered serious enough to reject. He highlighted that the fact 
that this was an existing access did not mean it should be made worse by adding to 
the problems it had.  

10. Councillor Vicky Poole agreed largely with what Councillor Pemberton had said. She 
raised concerns around visibility noting that she was uncomfortable approving this 
application with the proposed sight lines of 85m whilst it was national guidance that 
sight lines of 215m be adhered to.  

11. Councillor Ross Mackinnon highlighted that the sight line was 85m and not 215m and 
that this was not going to change regardless of whether the application was approved 
or not. He felt that Councillor Poole’s logic precluded any development that was likely 
to increase traffic movements down the lane in question. He felt that the application 
could not be assessed based on one incident occurring as this was to imply that the 
Committee was moving forward on a zero risk basis. He highlighted that the traffic 
officers had advised that the increase in vehicle movements was likely to be minor. 
Though he had not made his mind up on the application, he felt that if Members were 
minded to reject permission then the reasons needed to be stronger than were being 
suggested. 

12. Councillor Clive Taylor was inclined to agree with Councillor Mackinnon on the 
highways issue but raised concern around the issue of noise. He noted the proposed 
opening times and that the proposed location of the containers was very close to 
Church View Farm. He felt that if the proposal was to be accepted, he would like the 
opening times to be revised to 8:30am to 5:30pm Monday-Saturday and 9am-12pm 
Sundays and bank holidays.  

13. Councillor Paul Kander found Councillor Taylor’s suggestion to be reasonable. He 
noted that whilst he was pro-business, the reduced hours would not matter that much 
but would have significantly smaller impact on amenity for the neighbours. He sought 
clarity on whether it was possible to make it a left turn only when exiting the site. He 

Page 8



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

also expressed concern about how this portion of the site was going to be policed 
given that the rest of the site was allowed to be accessed at all hours.  

14. Paul Goddard advised that making the exit a left turn only was not possible as it was 
a private access, and a Traffic Regulation Order would be required in order to 
enforce such a condition.  

15. Councillor Mackinnon proposed to accept Officer’s recommendation and grant 
planning permission subject to the conditions listed in the main report, with an 
additional condition that opening times be revised to 8:30am to 5:30pm Monday-
Saturday and 9am-12pm Sundays and bank holidays. This was seconded by 
Councillor Taylor 

16. The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by 
Councillor Mackinnon, seconded by Councillor Taylor, to grant planning permission. 
At the vote the motion was rejected. 

17. Councillor Pemberton proposed to reject Officer’s recommendation and refuse 
planning permission on the basis that it contravened paragraph 116 of the NPPF by 
having an unacceptable impact on highways safety, this was seconded by Councillor 
Tom McCann 

18. The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by 
Councillor Pemberton, seconded by Councillor McCann, to refuse planning 
permission. At the vote the motion was carried. 

RESOLVED that the Development Manager be authorised to refuse planning permission 
on the basis that it contravened paragraph 116 of the NPPF by having an unacceptable 
impact on highways safety. 

(2) 25/00732/HOUSE - Gardeners Cottage, Buckhold, Pangbourne 

19. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(2)) concerning Planning 
Application 25/00732/HOUSE in respect of the erection of side extension to existing 
dwelling and internal alterations at Gardeners Cottage, Buckhold, Pangbourne, 
Reading, RG8 8QA. It was decided that Agenda Item 4(3)), concerning Planning 
Application 25/00733/LBC, would be considered under the same agenda item but with 
a separate vote.  

20. Simon Till introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the relevant 
policy considerations and other material planning considerations. In conclusion the 
report detailed that the proposal was unsatisfactory in planning terms and officers 
recommended that the Development Manager be authorised to refuse planning 
permission for the reasons listed in the main report.  

21. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Andrew House, Parish Council 
representative, and Miss Karen Lane-Standley, Mr Mark Pettitt and Mr Richard 
Massey, applicant/agent, addressed the Committee on this application. 

Parish/Town Council Representation 

22. Andrew House addressed the Committee. This representation can be viewed on the 
recording:  
Eastern Area Planning Committee - Wednesday 6 August 2025 (1:33:27)   
 

Member Questions to the Parish/Town Council 

23. Members did not have any questions of clarification. 
 

Page 9

https://www.youtube.com/live/nPwwOfjqtco?t=5607s


EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

Applicant/Agent Representation 

24. Miss Karen Lane-Standley, Mr Mark Pettitt and Mr Richard Massey addressed the 
Committee. This representation can be viewed on the recording:  
Eastern Area Planning Committee - Wednesday 6 August 2025 (1:37:49) 
 

Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent 

25. Members did not have any questions of clarification. 

Ward Member Representation 

26. Councillor Ross Mackinnon addressed the Committee. This representation can be 
viewed on the recording:  
Eastern Area Planning Committee - Wednesday 6 August 2025 (1:44:58) 
 

Member Questions to the Ward Member 

27. Members did not have any questions of clarification. 

Member Questions to Officers 

28. Members asked questions of clarification and were given the following responses: 
 

 Simon Till advised Members that this was a tricky application to assess. He noted that 
the extension approved in 1996 created a single built form, and the combination of the 
historical core and the extension that was approved in 1996 had effectively doubled 
the size of the building. The issue with the proposal was that the guidance in relation 
to listed buildings maintained that the listed building needed to retain its significance 
within the site. He advised that there was no hard and fast rule but conservation 
officers tended to object to applications that were going to subsume the original 
building unless there was a public benefit to outweigh this.  

 Simon Till advised that any departure from policy had certain legislative requirements 
associated with it, but that overturning officer’s recommendation would not 
necessarily mean departing from policy in a case where design was the concern. He 
advised Members could take a view on all the circumstances and whether the 
proposal would do harm to the listed building.  

 Simon Till advised there was no concrete definition of what constituted harm to a 
listed building. He informed Members that they were expected to reach a conclusion 
based on whether they felt that the significance of the listed building would be 
retained. He referenced the report noting that the building had a particular place in the 
wider estate as an ancillary cottage, a necessarily small building which was to be 
greatly increased in size under this proposal. He advised that there was a danger of a 
further extension subsuming the building and fundamentally changing how the 
building was read that informed the officer’s recommendation of refusal. 

 Simon Till advised that the North Wessex Downs Natural Landscape organisation 
was finding it difficult to respond to applications but was unsure whether they had 
been contacted for comment. He highlighted that it was the duty of the Local Planning 
Authority to make reasonable decisions regarding the future and heritage of the 
National Landscape. Councillor Vicky Poole advised she had approached the NL 
organisation, and they had no comment as it was not something that was likely to 
affect the overall visual characteristics of the landscape. 

 Simon Till advised that there was a prepared list of proposed conditions should 
Members be minded to go against officers’ recommendations. 
 

Debate 

Page 10

https://www.youtube.com/live/nPwwOfjqtco
https://www.youtube.com/live/nPwwOfjqtco?t=6298s


EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

29. Councillor Ross Mackinnon opened the debate by highlighting that this was a 
judgement call. He credited Simon Till for recognising that. He felt that a one size fits 
all approach was not always best. He highlighted that there was no clear definition of 
substantial harm and noted that from the road, the first thing that was going to be 
visible, should this application be approved, was the listed building and the 
extensions were going to be round the back. He advised that he could not see who 
this proposal was harming, noting Councillor Poole’s information that this was 
something that the AONB would not look to comment on. He felt that the extension 
would not cause substantial harm due to the secluded nature of the site. 

30. Councillor Justin Pemberton noted that the parish council and the ward member 
spoke positively about the application and felt that this was something that needed to 
be taken into account. He advised that whilst he sympathised with the applicants’ 
personal circumstances, the position of officers could not be clearer. He highlighted 
the Inspector’s report from 2014. He noted that the development needed to be 
sympathetic to its surroundings and the existing form of the listed building. He felt 
that the increased floor space (totalling 69%) and how it would sit within the context 
of the site made it difficult for him to override a number of policies that had only 
recently been adopted. He believed that the only way to go against officers’ 
recommendations was to interpret the Local Plan in a particular way. He felt he could 
not discount the professional view of officers that this would represent a 
disproportionate extension to a grade II listed building. He felt that the number of 
policies this application contravened made it difficult for him to support. 

31. Councillor Mackinnon was surprised by Councillor Pemberton’s comments. He 
advised that the 69% increase in floor space was the increase in floor space 
delivered by the previous extension. He believed that Simon Till was clear that this 
was a judgement call and it was for Members to judge whether this application 
caused substantial harm. He noted that many of the policies were complied with and 
that the application was balanced. 

32. Councillor Paul Kander noted the point of the Committee was to deal with difficult 
applications. He felt that this was not clear cut and it was for Members to determine 
what significant harm meant. He advised that old buildings had always been built 
upon and that the proposals were sympathetic to the original building. He believed 
that it was important for a common sense view to be taken and highlighted that if this 
was not to be built on it could become unfit for purpose and fall into disrepair. He felt 
that common sense and usability should prevail. 

33. Councillor Clive Taylor largely agreed with Councillor Kander’s comments. He noted 
that the original extension was very well constructed and it was difficult to tell it apart 
from the original building. He felt that it was for Members to judge whether the 
conclusion, that this caused significant harm, was the correct one. He highlighted that 
St Andrews School was on the estate and was surrounded by a number of odd 
buildings that had received planning consent. He felt that the changes proposed 
would improve the amenity of the site. 

34. Councillor Poole extended her sympathies to the applicant, she felt that people 
looked to adapt their properties for their needs and this was what the application was 
trying to do. She could see both perspectives of this application but was leaning 
towards supporting this.  

35. Councillor Tom McCann noted the quality of the debate and was swayed by 
Councillor Kander’s comments. He agreed that it was important to be sensitive to the 
future use of buildings. He felt well designed buildings would add character and was 
leaning towards supporting the application.   

Page 11



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

36. Councillor Kander proposed to reject Officer’s recommendation and grant planning 
permission subject to conditions listed below, including a condition that the property 
not be split into multiple properties. This was seconded by Councillor Taylor. 

37. The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by 
Councillor Kander, seconded by Councillor Taylor, to grant planning permission. At 
the vote the motion was carried. 

RESOLVED that the Development Manager be authorised to grant conditional planning 
permission, which would include a condition that the property not be split into multiple 
properties. 

Conditions 

1. Commencement 
The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from the date of 
this decision.  

Reason:   To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004). 

2. Approved plans 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans/documents: 

231013-01 - Location Plan & Proposed Site Plan received on 27/03/2025 

231013-02 - Proposed Site Plan received on 27/03/2025 

231013-03 - Proposed North and West Elevation received on 27/03/2025 

231013-03 - Proposed South and East Elevation received on 27/03/2025 

Cover Letter received on 10/04/2025 

Heritage Statement received on 31/03/2025 

Design and Access Statement received on 10/04/2025 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Bat Roost Assessment) received on 27/03/2025 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in interest of proper planning. 

3. Approved materials 
The materials to be used in the development hereby permitted shall be in accordance 
with those specified on the associated listed building consent reference 25/00733/LBC.  

 Reason:   To ensure the appropriate use of external materials.  This condition is applied 
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies SP7, SP9 and 
DM10 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041, and Supplementary Planning 
Document Quality Design (June 2006). 

4. Ecology 
All ecological measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
contained in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and Bat risk Assessment (March 2025, 
Bombus Ecology Limited), as already submitted with the planning application and agreed 
in principle with the Local Planning Authority prior to determination. 

Reason: To ensure the adequate safeguarding of protected species in accordance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy SP11 of the West Berkshire Local 
Plan Review 2023-2041. 

5. Ancillary use 

Page 12



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

The extension hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any time other than for purposes 
ancillary and/or incidental to the residential use of the dwelling known as Gardeners 
Cottage. 

Reason:   The creation of a separate planning unit would conflict with the strategy for the 
location of new development, and be unacceptable in the interests of ensuring a 
sustainable pattern of development.  This condition is applied in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies SP1, SP2 (if National Landscape), 
DM28, DM30 and DM44 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

(3) 25/00733/LBC - Gardeners Cottage, Buckhold, Pangbourne 

The Committee considered this report (Agenda Item 4(3)), concerning Planning 
Application 25/00733/LBC, as part of the debate for Agenda Item 4(2).  

Debate 

38. Councillor Paul Kander proposed to reject Officer’s recommendation and grant listed 
building consent subject to conditions, including a condition that the property not be 
split into multiple properties. This was seconded by Councillor Clive Taylor. 

39. The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by 
Councillor Kander, seconded by Councillor Taylor, to grant planning permission. At 
the vote the motion was carried. 

RESOLVED that Development Manager be authorised to grant conditional listed building 
consent which would include a condition that the property not be split into multiple 
properties. 

Conditions 

1. Commencement 
The works hereby granted listed building consent shall begin no later than three years 
from the date of this decision.  

Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 

2. Approved plan 
This listed building consent relates only to work described on the drawings/and/or/in the 
documents identified below: 

 

231013-01 - Location Plan & Proposed Site Plan received on 27/03/2025 

231013-02 - Proposed Site Plan received on 27/03/2025 

231013-03 - Proposed North and West Elevation received on 27/03/2025 

231013-03 - Proposed South and East Elevation received on 27/03/2025 

Cover Letter received on 10/04/2025 

Heritage Statement received on 31/03/2025 

Design and Access Statement received on 10/04/2025 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Bat Roost Assessment) received on 27/03/2025 

The works shall be carried out in strict conformity with the approved plans and associated 
approved submitted information. 

Reason: To clarify what has been approved under this consent in order to protect the 
special architectural or historic interest of the building. 

Page 13



EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 6 AUGUST 2025 - MINUTES 
 

3. Approved materials 
The materials, finishes, new windows and doors to be used in the development hereby 
permitted shall be as specified on the plans, within the Design and Access Heritage 
Statement, and the application forms. Where stated that materials shall match the 
existing, those materials shall match those on the existing development in colour, size, 
texture and bond.  

Reason:   To ensure that the materials are appropriate to the special architectural or 
historic interest of the building.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policies SP9, DM9 and DM10 of the West Berkshire 
Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

4. Windows/doors 
No new external doors and windows shall be fitted until working drawings (scale 1:20, 
1:10, 1:5, half or full size etc.) fully detailing the new / or replacement windows and/or 
external doors (cross sections for full glazing bars, sills, heads etc.) have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out using the approved specification and retained thereafter.  

Reason: To ensure that the proposed works can be effected without detriment to the 
special architectural and historic interest of the heritage assets and to ensure a 
satisfactory appearance to the development and to comply with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policies SP9, DM9 and DM10 of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
Review 2023-2041. 

5. Workmanlike manner 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in a proper workmanlike manner 
appropriate to the age and character of the building and using traditional materials and 
techniques except where the use of modern materials and techniques has specifically 
been approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To protect the special architectural or historic interest of the building.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies SP9, DM9 and DM10 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

6. Making good 
All new development, and development associated with making good to the retained 
fabric, whether internal or external, shall be finished to match original/adjacent work with 
regard to the methods used and to materials, colours, textures and profiles.    

Reason: To protect the special architectural or historic interest of the building.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies SP9, DM9 and DM10 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

 
 
(The meeting commenced at 18:30 and closed at 20:56) 
 
 
CHAIRMAN ……………………………………………. 
 
Date of Signature ……………………………………………. 

Page 14



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

Item 
No. 

Application No. 
and Parish 

Statutory Target 
Date 

Proposal, Location, Applicant 

 
(1) 

 
25/00140/FUL 

Tilehurst Parish 

Council 

 
31st March 2025 1 

 
Erection of 4no. residential dwellings 
comprising 4 x 2-bedroom semi-
detached houses including 2no. parking 
spaces per dwelling and private 
gardens. Creation of new vehicular 
access from City Road. Provision of 
accessible greenspace to rear of site 

Land Adjacent To Linnet Close 

Linnet Close 

Tilehurst 

Reading 

James Cooper 

1 Extension of time agreed with applicant until 10th October 2025 

 
The application can be viewed on the Council’s website at the following link: 
25/00140/FUL | Erection of 4no. residential dwellings comprising 4 x 2-bedroom semi-
detached houses including 2no. parking spaces per dwelling and private gardens. Creation 
of new vehicular access from City Road. Provision of accessible greenspace to rear of site | 
Land Adjacent To Linnet Close Linnet Close Tilehurst Reading 
 
 
Recommendation Summary: 
 

To delegate to the Development Manager to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the completion of a 
S106 agreement and to the conditions listed in Section 8 
of this report  
 

Ward Member(s): 
 

Councillor Joanne Stewart 
Councillor Clive Taylor 
 

Reason for Committee 
Determination: 
 

Called-in by Ward member 
More than 10 Objections 

Committee Site Visit: 
 

1st October 2025 

 
 

Contact Officer Details 
 
Name: Sian Cutts 

Job Title: Senior Planning Officer 

Tel No: 01635 519111 

Email: Sian.cutts@westberks.gov.uk 

 
  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.(1)

https://publicaccess.westberks.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://publicaccess.westberks.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://publicaccess.westberks.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://publicaccess.westberks.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider the proposed development 
against the policies of the development plan and the relevant material considerations, 
and to make a decision as to whether to approve or refuse the application. 

1.2 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of 4 no. 2 bedroom semi-
detached houses, the application proposes two parking spaces for each dwelling, to 
be served from a new access onto City Road.  The application also proposes that the 
southern part of the site will be an area of accessible open space, which is landscaped 
and accessible to the public from Linnet Close. 

1.3 The application site forms part of the original residential curtilage of 187 City Road, 
and an area of grassland which was formerly used as public open space, which has 
been fenced off.  The site is situated between City Road, Linnet Close and Bitterne 
Avenue. The section of the site outside the curtilage of 187 City Road was used as a 
play area between 1971-2006 until the lease to Tilehurst Parish Council expired.  
Since that time the land has been closed off to public use. The site is bounded by 1.8 
metre high close boarded fences. 

1.4 The application proposes the erection of two pairs semi-detached two-bedroom 
houses.  Each house will have its own private garden, and there is single access point 
from City Road which will lead to a communal parking and turning area with two 
spaces per dwelling, and a bin storage area.  The proposed garden areas are between 
89 sq. metres to 142 sq. metres.  It is proposed to retain the southern part of the site 
as publicly accessible space, with access from Linnet Close. The site layout plan 
indicates that this is proposed to be laid to grass with new hedges and trees with a 
gate access. 

2. Planning History 

2.1 The table below outlines the relevant planning history of the application site. 

Application Proposal Decision / 
Date 

84/21393/ADD Pair of semi-detached houses for private 
occupation 

Refused  

25/04/1984 

Appeal 
Dismissed 

13/02/1985 

 

06/01759/OUTD Erection of 4 semi-detached houses with 
garages (2 x 2 bed, 2 x 3 bed) 

Refused 

05/09/2006 

Appeal 
dismissed  

01/06/2007 

Page 16



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

09/01723/OUTD Erection of 4 No. semi detached houses with 
garages with approval being sought for access, 
landscaping and layout. 

Refused 

12/11/2009 

Appeal 
dismissed 

09/07/2010 

 

3. Legal and Procedural Matters 

3.1 Environmental Impact Assessments (EIA):  Given the nature, scale and location of 
this development, it is not considered to fall within the description of any development 
listed in Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017.  As such, EIA screening is not required. 

3.2 Publicity:  Publicity has been undertaken in accordance with Article 15 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, 
and the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement.  Site notices were displayed 
on 27th February 2025 at Linnet Close, Bitterne Avenue and City Road, with a deadline 
for representations of 20th March 2025.  Notification letters were sent to 14 adjoining 
occupiers. 

3.3 Local Financial Considerations: Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) provides that a local planning authority must have regard to a 
local finance consideration as far as it is material.  Whether or not a ‘local finance 
consideration’ is material to a particular decision will depend on whether it could help 
to make the development acceptable in planning terms. It would not be appropriate to 
make a decision based on the potential for the development to raise money for a local 
authority or other government body.  The table below identified the relevant local 
financial considerations for this proposal.   

Consideration Applicable 
to proposal 

Material to 
decision 

Refer to 
paragraph(s) 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Yes No 3.4 

New Homes Bonus Yes No 3.5 

Affordable Housing No No  

Public Open Space or Play Areas Yes Yes 6.3 & 6.26 

Developer Contributions (S106) No No 6.26 

Job Creation No No  

 

3.4 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a levy 
charged on most new development within an authority area. The money is used to pay 
for new infrastructure, supporting the development of an area by funding the provision, 
replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure.  CIL will be used to fund 
roads and other transport facilities, schools and other educational facilities, flood 

Page 17



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

defences, medical facilities, open spaces, and sports and recreational areas.  Subject 
to the application of any applicable exemptions, CIL will be charged on residential 
(Use Classes C3 and C4) and retail (former Use Classes A1 – A5) development at a 
rate per square metre (based on Gross Internal Area) on new development of more 
than 100 square metres of gross internal area (including extensions) or when a new 
dwelling is created (even if it is less than 100 square metres).  CIL liability, and the 
application of any exemptions, will be formally confirmed by the CIL Charging Authority 
under separate cover following any grant of planning permission.  More information is 
available at https://www.westberks.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy  

3.5 New Homes Bonus (NHB): New Homes Bonus payments recognise the efforts made 
by authorities to bring residential development forward. NHB money will be material to 
the planning application when it is reinvested in the local areas in which the 
developments generating the money are to be located, or when it is used for specific 
projects or infrastructure items which are likely to affect the operation or impacts of 
those developments.  NHB is not considered to be a relevant material consideration in 
this instance, but can be noted for information. 

3.6 Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED): In determining this application the Council is 
required to have due regard to its obligations under the Equality Act 2010.  The 
Council must have due regard to the need to achieve the following objectives: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

3.7 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves 
having due regard, in particular, to the need to— 

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate 
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionately low. 

3.8 The key equalities protected characteristics include age, disability, gender, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief.  Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage, 
the duty is to have regard to and remove or minimise disadvantage.  In considering the 
merits of this planning application, due regard has been given to these objectives. 

3.9 There is no indication or evidence (including from consultation on the application) that 
persons with protected characteristics as identified by the Act have or will have 
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation to this particular planning 
application and there would be no significant adverse impacts as a result of the 
development. 

Page 18

https://www.westberks.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy


 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

3.10 All new buildings within the development will be required to comply with Building 
Regulations which have their own criteria to apply for the design of buildings which 
also has due regard to the Act. CIL contributions are also taken towards healthcare 
and education & training facilities as part of the development. 

3.11 Human Rights Act: The development has been assessed against the provisions of 
the Human Rights Act, including Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of property), 
Article 6 (Right to a fair trial) and Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life 
and home) of the Act itself.  The consideration of the application in accordance with 
the Council procedures will ensure that views of all those interested are taken into 
account.  All comments from interested parties have been considered and reported in 
summary in this report, with full text available via the Council’s website. 

3.12 It is It is acknowledged that there are certain properties where they may be some 
impact, such as some limited overlooking) However, any interference with the right to 
a private and family life and home arising from the scheme as a result of impact on 
residential amenity is considered necessary in a democratic society in the interests of 
the economic well-being of the district and wider area and is proportionate given the 
overall benefits of the scheme in terms of provision of 4 new homes, and additional 
public open space. 

3.13 Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance with the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the development of land. 
This recommendation is based on the consideration of the proposal against adopted 
Development Plan policies, the application of which does not prejudice the Human 
Rights of the applicant or any third party. 

4. Consultation 

Statutory and non-statutory consultation 

4.1 The table below summarises the consultation responses received during the 
consideration of the application.  The full responses may be viewed with the 
application documents on the Council’s website, using the link at the start of this 
report. 

Tilehurst Parish 
Council: 

1st response:  Object due to poor visibility of the access close to a 
bus stop, overlooking to neighbouring properties, exacerbate 
drainage and sewage problems, increased flood risk, traffic 
congestion worsened on City Road, particularly at school drop-off 
and pick up times, reduced parking at neighbouring property, 
existing long-term green space will be lost, displacement of 
wildlife, smaller green space likely to increase incidents of anti-
social behaviour. 

2nd response: Object as the new access is opposite a road 
junction, all other comments still stand. 

Highways: 1st Response:  Amended plans are required to provide the full 
visibility splays and widened access. Parking, and cycle storage 
is acceptable, electric vehicle charging points required which can 
be secured by condition. 

2nd Response: Amended plans required for the replacement 
parking for the existing dwelling.  The street light can be moved 

Page 19



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

at the applicant’s expense. It has been confirmed that the bus 
stop is not in use. 

3rd Response:  On-site turning for the existing dwelling must be 
provided 

4th response:  A clearer site plan is required to show the turning 
spaces, subject to this the recommendation is conditional 
approval 

LLFA: 1st Response: The principles for the drainage strategy are 
accepted but further amendment is required to allow for 
Greenfield discharge rate, and more green storage measures are 
also required. 

2nd Response:  Recommend pre-commencement conditions 

Ecology:  Sufficient information has been provided, and recommend 
conditions  

Thames Water: No response received 

Countryside 
Team: 

No response received 

Waste 
Management: 

No response received 

 

Public representations 

4.2 Representations have been received from 18 contributors 0 of which support, and 18 
of which object to the proposal. 

4.3 The full responses may be viewed with the application documents on the Council’s 
website, using the link at the start of this report.  In summary, the following 
issues/points have been raised: 

 There are existing problems with drainage, which this will make worse 

 Concern about the responsibility and upkeep of the public accessible space 

 The design does not fit with the local area 

 Existing landscaping around the site is overgrown, there should be fences 
around the whole site 

 The height of the houses will impact sunlight to adjacent gardens 

 Linnet Close is not suitable for construction traffic 

 Overlooking into adjacent gardens & houses 

 Increased flood risk in an area with surface water issues 

 No Flood Risk Assessment 

 Overdevelopment of the site, excessive density for the plot 

 Proximity to the bus stop 

 Impact on wildlife 

 Insufficient parking, no visitor parking 

 Excessive density of development 

 Garden spaces are not practical useable space 

 The previous appeal said the site provides significant amenity value 

Page 20



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

 The public accessible space is not an adequate substitute for the loss of the 
bigger space 

 Set a precedent for unsustainable infill development 

 Proximity to bus stop will be a hazard to road uses and pedestrians 

 Increased congestion, problems with congestion at school times, Travis 
Perkins, the pub and the bus stop, only access to the Birds Estate 

 Increase in crime 

 Noise and disturbance during construction for shift workers and residents 

 Previous appeals on the site were dismissed 

 Site notices not correctly posted 

 No dimensions provided to show how the development fits or for the public 
land 

 Plans incorrectly show a bus stop on that side of City Road 

 Noise pollution 

 The site should be reopened to the public 

 Issues with construction traffic getting to a constrained site in a residential area 

 Incorrect drainage plans 

 Large oak trees were felled before the ecological surveys were undertaken 

 Green infrastructure is being removed and not replaced by a suitable 
equivalent green space 

 Lack of engagement with the community 

 The site is an important green buffer providing visual and environmental 
benefits 

 Impact on the social fabric of the neighbourhood 

 Repeat applications on the same site 

5. Planning Policy 

5.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  The following policies of the statutory development plan are relevant to the 
consideration of this application. 

Development Plan Document Relevant Policies 

West Berkshire Local Plan Review 
2023-2041 
 

Policy SP1 The Spatial Strategy  
Policy SP3 Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy SP5 Responding to Climate Change 
Policy SP6 Flood Risk 
Policy SP7 Design Quality 
Policy SP10 Green Infrastructure 
Policy SP11 Biodiversity & Geodiversity 
Policy SP12 Approach to Housing Delivery 
Policy SP15 Housing Type & Mix 
Policy SP19 Transport 
Policy SP20 Infrastructure Requirements & 
Delivery 
Policy DM4 Building Sustainable Homes & 
Businesses 
Policy DM5 Environmental Nuisance & 
Pollution Control 
Policy DM6 Water Quality 
Policy DM7 Water Resources & Waste 
Water 
Policy DM8 Air Quality 

Page 21



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

Policy DM15 Trees, Woodland & 
Hedgerows 
Policy DM30 Residential Amenity 
Policy DM41 Digital Infrastructure 
Policy DM42 Transport Infrastructure 
Policy DM44 Parking 

 

Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
(2022-2037) 
 

Policy 9 Minerals Safeguarding 

 
5.2 The following material considerations are relevant to the consideration of this 

application: 

 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

 Quality Design SPD (2006) 

 Planning Obligations SPD (2014) 

 Sustainable Drainage Systems SPD (2018) 

6. Appraisal 

Principle of development 

6.1 Policy SP1 sets out the spatial strategy for development, and says that development 
will follow the settlement hierarchy set out on policy SP3, and says that development 
within settlement boundaries will be supported. Policy SP1 says that the Eastern 
Urban Area will continue to be a focus for housing development, including through 
change in the existing built-up area. The policy says that in making the optimum use of 
land and achieving high quality design, density of individual sites will vary, but goes on 
to say that in Tilehurst net densities of at least 35 dwellings per hectare would be 
expected.  Policy SP12 sets out the housing requirements during the plan period. 

6.2 The application site is on land within the Tilehurst settlement boundary, and represents 
a net density of 36 dwellings per hectare.  The principle of the development accords 
with Policies SP1 and SP3. 

6.3 There have been previous applications for residential development on this site, which 
was formerly used as a play area for young children.  These applications were refused 
and subsequent appeals dismissed.  In the most recent decision in 2010 the Inspector 
dismissed the appeal, because although the site had not been used for some time it 
still had an amenity value, and could still be brought back into use, and it did not 
constitute previously developed land. The Inspector said that it had an amenity value 
even if it was not brought back into use.  In assessing the current application, there 
have been changes to national and local planning policy since the previous appeal 
was dismissed,  with the introduction of the NPPF, and the LPR superseding the 
previous Local Plan policies.  It has now been 19 years since the site was used as a 
play area.   It is no longer a community facility and it is considered that as a 
sustainably located site within the settlement boundary within a residential area, and 
with albeit a much reduced area provided for publicly accessible space, the previous 
reasons for refusing the application  have been overcome, and the application is 
considered to be acceptable in principle, subject to the consideration of the following 
material considerations.  

Page 22

https://www.westberks.gov.uk/mwlp
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/mwlp


 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

Character and appearance 

6.4 Policy SP7 requires new development to strengthen a sense of place through high 
quality locally distinctive design and place shaping, and to take opportunities for 
conserving and enhancing the character, appearance and quality of an area and the 
way it functions, and for development to respond positively to design guidance.  The 
supporting text sets out further guidance about how development can demonstrate a 
positive response to the characteristics of a well-designed place. 

6.5 The application is proposing the erection of two pairs of semi-detached houses, which 
will face towards City Road, to the east is 187 City Road which is a detached 
bungalow, and to the west on higher ground are pairs of semi-detached houses in 
Bitterne Avenue, to the south-east of the site is Linnet Close which also comprises 
semi-detached houses.  The form of the development blends with the surrounding 
scale and pattern of development. 

6.6 There have been objections raised about the height of the dwellings, as they are taller 
that the surrounding development.  However, given the differences in the ground 
levels, it is considered to be a scale of development which blends with the 
surroundings.  The dwellings will be set back from the road, set back from the 
bungalow at 187 City Road, which will also help them to blend into the street scene.  
The 1.8 metres high close boarded fence which currently runs along City Road, would 
be replaced with a 1.2 metres high brick wall to enclose the parking area, and this is 
considered to be visually appropriate, and opens up the street frontage along City 
Road, rather than the harsh close boarded fence. 

6.7 The front elevation of the dwellings takes the uniform style of houses in Bitterne 
Avenue and Linnet Close as a design cue, and interpret them in a contemporary way, 
with a different mix of materials, including a zinc roof, and diamond tile hanging and a 
grey/buff brick to the ground floor and side elevations.  Whilst these materials are 
different to those used elsewhere in the immediate vicinity, where there is a mixture of 
ages of development, and the proposed materials provide the houses with a 
contemporary appearance.  The exact specification and approval of the final schedule 
of materials can be secured though conditions.   

Residential Amenity (Neighbours) 

6.8 Policy DM30 says that all development will be required to provide and/or maintain a 
high standard of amenity for existing and future users of land and buildings. When 
considering the impact on the living conditions of existing and proposed residential 
dwellings, development proposals will be supported where there is no unacceptable 
harm in terms of the following criteria: 

a. Any significant loss of daylight and/or sunlight to land and buildings; 

b. Any significant overlooking of land and buildings that results in a harmful loss of 
privacy; 

c. Development resulting in an undue sense of enclosure, overbearing impact, or a 
harmful loss of outlook; and 

d. Noise, dust, fumes and odours 

6.9 There have been a number of objections which have referred to the loss of sunlight 
and daylight the houses and gardens as a result of the proposals.  The nearest 
dwellings to the application site are 187 City Road, and 2 Linnet Close.  The applicant 
submitted information with regards to the sunlight and daylight to the nearest habitable 
room windows from a sunlight and daylight consultant who confirmed that there was 

Page 23



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

unlikely to be a material impact on the affected windows.  The positioning of Plot 4 is 
such that whilst it is 7.6 metres separation distance to between the nearest parts of the 
dwellings, plot 4 is to the north-west of the site, and situated so that there will not be 
an unacceptable degree of overshadowing to the habitable rooms of 2 Linnet Close.  
Due to the orientation distances, there will be some shadowing to the garden, 
however, as the proposed dwellings are to the north-west of Linnet Close this is limited 
to the late evenings, and is not considered to be a significant level of loss. 

6.10 The proposed dwellings have habitable windows to the front and rear of the buildings, 
facing City Road and the rear garden and open space respectively.  On the side 
elevations there are secondary windows serving habitable rooms in Plots 1 and 4, and 
these will be screened by the 1.8 metres existing fences round the site.  At first floor 
level there are landing and bathroom windows.  These are not habitable rooms, and so 
there will not be overlooking between these dwellings.  There are first floor windows on 
the side elevation of 2 Linnet Close which faces towards the site, however these do 
not serve habitable rooms, and so given the angles, it is not considered that there 
would be a loss of privacy to that dwelling.  The distance between the directly facing 
windows in Bitterne Avenue exceeds the minimum of 21 metres between facing 
habitable room windows required by the supporting text to Policy DM30 and the 
Quality Design SPD.  The proposals are not considered to result in a significant loss of 
privacy to those dwellings.   

6.11 The application site is within a residential area, and during the construction phase of 
the development it would be necessary to limit the hours of works on site to minimise 
the potential disruption to residents.  There was a concern raised about the 
disturbance to shift workers needing to rest during the day.  However, it is not 
reasonable to further restrict the hours of operation beyond standard working hours, as 
this would lead to a prolonged construction period.   

Residential Amenity (Occupiers) 

6.12 Policy DM30 also sets out requirements for development to meet to maintain a high 
standard of amenity for future occupiers and sets the following criteria: 

i. Functional amenity space of a quality and size to meet the needs of the occupants; 

ii. Internal accommodation of an adequate size and layout relative to the intensity of 
occupation envisaged; 

iii. Natural light in all habitable rooms of the proposed development; 

iv. A garden size which is at least a minimum of 10.5 metres in depth, where possible; 
and 

v. A minimum distance of 21 metres between directly facing windows, serving 
habitable rooms. 

6.13 The supporting text to Policy DM30 repeats the guidance within the Quality Design 
SPD, that the guidance requires a minimum outdoor amenity space of at least 70 sq. 
metres for one- and two-bedroom houses.  The garden sizes ranged from 89 sq. 
metres to 142 sq. metres accessible from the rear of the house, and will be divided by 
1.8 metre high fencing.  This exceeds the minimum garden size required by the 
guidance, and is considered to be suitable to meet the needs of future residents.  The 
garden spaces proposed have a depth of 15 metres, which also exceeds the minimum 
requirements set out in Policy DM30.  As previously discussed, there are sufficient 
privacy distances between facing habitable room windows.  The floor plans indicate 
that there is natural light to all of the habitable room windows, and the houses have a 
suitable size and layout for the anticipated occupation of being occupied by 4 people.  

Page 24



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

The size and layout of the development meets the internal and external amenity needs 
of future occupiers in accordance with Policy DM30. 

6.14 Highways 

6.15 According to Policy SP19, development that generates a transport impact will be 
required to (amongst others) mitigate any adverse impact on local transport networks.  
Policy DM44 sets out the parking requirements for new developments. 

6.16 The application is proposing 2 spaces for each of the dwellings, so a total of 8 spaces 
for the development, which will be accessed from one point onto City Road, with space 
for tuning within the site.  Following the submission of amended plans showing the 
access in a new location the Highways Authority have confirmed that the access 
details are acceptable, subject to the relocation of an existing streetlight, and the 
removal of a bus stop on the carriageway adjacent to the access.  These can be 
secured via conditions.  The application site includes a part of the residential curtilage 
of 187 City Road, and this included some of the previous parking and turning area 
which served that dwelling.  Whilst the remaining curtilage is beyond the application 
site, it is on land owned or controlled by the applicant, and so conditions relating to the 
development can be imposed on this land.  Swept path diagrams were submitted with 
the application to demonstrate that parking and turning can be provided to serve 187 
City Road following the reduction in parking area.  A condition can be added to the 
permission to ensure that the area is retained for parking. 

6.17 There were objections raised by the public about the potential for additional congestion 
and increase in traffic as a result of the development.  The Highways Authority have 
not raised any objection to the amount of traffic that the proposal will generate.  The 
relocation of the access further away from the bus stop and widening of the access 
has overcome the initial concerns of the Highway Authority, and with the imposition of 
conditions.  There were also objections raised about the deliveries to the site, and a 
condition requiring a Construction Method Statement is required.  The wording of the 
condition also restricts deliveries so that they cannot occur between 8am and 9am in 
the morning and 5pm and 6pm in the evening.  With the imposition of these conditions 
the application is considered to accord with Policies SP19 and DM44. 

6.18 Flooding and Drainage 

6.19 Policy SP6 sets out the policies for development on sites at risk of all sources of 
flooding.  It goes on to say that on all development sites in order to restrict or reduce 
runoff surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner through the 
implementation of Sustainable Drainage Methods (SuDS).   

6.20 The application site is within Flood Zone 1 and is not in an area at risk of groundwater 
or surface water flooding.  The application was submitted with a Drainage Strategy 
which was amended following the initial consultation response from the Council’s 
Drainage Engineers.  The details which were subsequently submitted have 
demonstrated adequate run-off rates, and that the surface water from the site can de 
satisfactorily drained, subject to further details being provided via conditions, and that 
this will not increase the surface water flood risk from the site. 

6.21 There were objections raised about the sewer capacity of the existing network 
surrounding the site.  Thames Water are the statutory undertaker for dealing with foul 
water.  They were consulted on the application and no comments on the application 
were received.  The developer will require in due course consent from Thames Water 
to discharge into their network which is a matter separate to the planning regime. 

Ecology 

Page 25



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

6.22 Policy SP11 says that development proposals will be required to demonstrate how 
they conserve and enhance biodiversity and/or geodiversity including their long-term 
future management and, where required, deliver Biodiversity Net Gains.  Criterion k of 
Policy DM28 requires that the proposal conserves and enhances biodiversity, in 
accordance with policy SP11. 

6.23 The application was submitted with a Preliminary Ecological Assessment which 
concluded that the site is not of a particularly high intrinsic value from a nature and 
conservation perspective, and concluded that there would not be any adverse impact 
to designated site, habitats of ecological significance or protected species.  The 
Council’s Ecologists have reviewed the submission and are satisfied with the level of 
information provided.  They have recommended that if the application is approved, it is 
subject to conditions requiring that works are carried out in accordance with the 
biodiversity method statements, and that a Construction Environmental Management 
Plan is secured as a pre-commencement condition.  The development is also subject 
to statutory Biodiversity Net Gain, and so a condition is required to secure a Habitat 
and Management Monitoring Plan in accordance with the Biodiversity Gain Plan.  The 
biodiversity improvements are proposed to be provided within the publicly accessible 
open space within the site. 

Climate Change 

6.24 Policy SP5 requires that the principles of climate change mitigation and adaptation will 
be required to be embedded into new development.  Proposals should be 
accompanied by a Sustainability Statement which demonstrates how the principles in 
Policy SP5 have been embedded into the development, proportionate to the scale and 
nature of the development proposed. Policy DM4 sets out the minimum standards of 
construction that new residential development will need to meet, and then once this 
has been met to include onsite renewable, zero and low carbon energy technologies to 
achieve net zero carbon operational energy (regulated and unregulated) on site. It 
should be demonstrated through the submission of an Energy Statement how these 
standards can be achieved. 

6.25 The Design and Access Statement includes a Sustainability Assessment.  Whilst this 
does not fully incorporate all of the measures referred to in Policies SP5 and DM4 it 
refers to utilising the Fabric First approach and using ultra high efficiency heating and 
hot water systems and the using air source heat pumps, as well as the use of recycled 
materials in the construction of the development.  Given the information that has been 
provided it is considered that an Energy Statement can be secured through a pre-
commencement condition.  This will need to demonstrate the standards of construction 
of 63% reduction in carbon emissions by on-site measures, as compared to the 
baseline emission rate set by Building Regulations Part L 2021(SAP 1.2) and the 
appropriate Fabric Efficiency (FEE) metric, as well as details of the renewable energy 
to be used on site in the development.  

6.26  Publicly Accessible Space 

6.27 The application proposes that part of the site will be made available as publicly 
accessible space.  This is an area of approximately 239 sq. metres to be accessed 
from Linnet Close.  Whilst this is only a small part of the site which was once fully 
accessible to the public and maintained by the Parish Council, I would still make a 
contribution to the space that is available for recreational needs.  There has been 
comments made within the public representations about the management of this land.  
The developer has indicated that they are willing to work with the Parish Council or 
West Berkshire Council for this to be managed by either body.  At the current time 
there is not a willingness for this this to be agreed by ether body.  Alternatively, the 
applicant has indicated that they would seek a management company to manage the 

Page 26



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

land on the behalf of the applicant.  The means of long-term and sustainable 
management of the land can be secured through a S106 agreement, to be secured 
before planning permission is granted.   

7. Planning Balance and Conclusion 

7.1 The application is proposing the addition of new dwellings on land within the Eastern 
Urban Area settlement boundary within the community of Tilehurst, as supported in 
principle by Policies SP1 and SP3.  The proposal will make a small contribution to the 
housing land supply as a windfall developmental and whilst the number of units is 
small, given the location of the development this is given great weight, given that the 
Council can only demonstrate a Five Year Housing Land Supply of 5.7 years (June 
2025).  The proposed dwellings can be provided without significant harm to the living 
conditions of the surrounding residents, and provide a suitable level of accommodation 
which accords with the relevant policies for the future occupiers of the dwellings.  
Following the amendments to the proposals, and with the imposition of suitable 
conditions the proposal accords with the highway safety requirements set out in policy 
and guidance.  The proposal will not be harmful to the general character and 
appearance of the area, as the houses relate to the design of houses adjacent to the 
site, and uses a mixture of contemporary materials.   

7.2 The development will result in the loss of the open space which has been used 
historically as public open space.  Whilst the previous appeals on the site gave great 
weight to the retention of the land for this use, given that it has not been publicly 
available for 19 years, the amenity value of the land is reduced, and the need to retain 
it for the amenity value it provides, which is now diminishing, given that the trees on 
the site have been removed, and it is of limited amenity value to residents, and so the 
loss of the area is given limited weight. The proposals include an albeit smaller area to 
be available to the public, with a legal agreement to secure its long-term management, 
rather than the larger area with no management plan, and no certainty that it will ever 
provide publicly available amenity space,  and this is given moderate weight as the 
land will provide an area for rest and relaxation to the community.   

7.3 The development is considered to provide a sustainable form of development, and 
whilst it regrettable that the land which was formerly open space will be significantly 
reduced in size, taking the development  plan as a whole and the urgent need to 
provide more houses that the need outweighs the loss of the amenity land, and it 
accords with the development plan as a whole. 

8. Full Recommendation 

8.1 To delegate to the Development Manager to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION 
subject to the conditions listed below. 

8.2 PROVIDED THAT a Section 106 Agreement has been completed by 10th December 
2025 (or such longer period that may be authorised by the Development Manager, in 
consultation with the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Eastern Area Planning 
Committee), to delegate to the Development Manager to GRANT PLANNING 
PERMISSION subject to the conditions listed below. 

8.3 OR, if a Section 106 Agreement is not completed, to delegate to the Development 
Manager to REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the reasons listed below. 

Page 27



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

Conditions 

1. Commencement of development 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason:   To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004). 
 

2. Approved plans 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved plans and documents listed below: 
 
Location Plan Drawing No 7502-PL01D received 2nd June 2025; 
Block Plan Drawing No 7502-PL02D received 2nd June 2025; 
Detail Site Layout Plan Drawing No 7502-PL08D received 2nd June 2025; 
Proposed Site Plan Ground Floor Drawing No 7502-PL03C received 3rd April 
2025; 
Proposed Site Plan First Floor Drawing No 7502-PL04C received 3rd April 
2025; 
Proposed Site Plan Roof Drawing No 7502-PL05D received 3rd April 2025; 
Proposed Boundary Plan Drawing No 7502-PL06C received 3rd April 2025; 
Proposed Street Scenes Drawing No 7502-PL30B received 3rd April 2025; 
Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations Drawing No 7502 - PL09-2B4P 
received 24th January 2025; 
Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations Drawing No 7502 – PL10A-2B4P 
received 24th January 2025; 
 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment prepared by Ecology Solutions Version 
VF1 dated 10th January 2025 received 3rd April 2025; 
Drainage Strategy prepared by Price & Myers Rev 3 dated March 2025 
received 3rd April 2025; 
Transport Note Addendum prepared by i-Transport ref BH/RS/ITB19385-002 
received 3rd April 2025; 
Biodiversity Net Gain Report prepared by Ecology Solutions dated 26th 
March 2025 received 3rd April 2025; and 
Design & Access Statement prepared by ECE Architecture received 3rd April 
2025; 
 
Reason:   For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning. 
 

3.  Materials 
 
No above ground development shall take place until a schedule of the 
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 
development hereby permitted, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Samples of materials shall be made 
available upon request. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure the appropriate use of external materials. This condition 
is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 
SP7 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041, and 
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006). 
 

Page 28



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

4.  Sustainable Drainage 

No development shall take place until details of sustainable drainage measures 
to manage surface water within the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
These details shall: 
 
a) Incorporate the implementation of Sustainable Drainage methods (SuDS) in 
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS (March 2015), 
the SuDS Manual C753 (2015) and the WBC SuDS Supplementary Planning 
Document December 2018 with particular emphasis on Green SuDS and water 
re-use; 
b) Include full information of catchments and flows discharging into and across 
the site and how these flows will be managed and routed through the 
development and, where the flows exit the site, both pre-development and post-
development information must be provided; 
c) Include and be informed by a ground investigation survey which establishes 
the soil characteristics, infiltration rate and groundwater levels. Soakage testing 
shall be undertaken in accordance with BRE365 methodology; 
d) Include run-off calculations based on current rainfall data models, discharge 
rates (no greater than 2.8 l/s), and infiltration and storage capacity calculations 
for the proposed SuDS measures based on a 1 in 100 year storm +40% for 
climate change; 
e) Include with any design calculations an allowance for an additional 10% 
increase of paved areas (Urban Creep) over the lifetime of the development; 
f) Include construction drawings, cross-sections and specifications of all 
proposed SuDS measures within the site; 
g) Ensure permeable paved areas are designed and constructed in accordance 
with manufacturers guidelines if using a proprietary porous paved block system; 
otherwise ensure any permeable areas are constructed on a permeable sub-
base material, such as MoT/DoT Type 3; 
h) Show that attenuation storage measures have a 300mm freeboard above 
maximum design water level. Surface conveyance features must have a 150mm 
freeboard above maximum design water level; 
i) Include written confirmation from Thames Water of their acceptance of the 
discharge from the site into the surface water sewer and confirmation that the 
downstream sewer network has the capacity to take this flow; 
j) Include a management and maintenance plan showing how the SuDS 
measures will be maintained and managed after completion for the lifetime of the 
development. This plan shall incorporate arrangements for adoption by the 
Council, Water and Sewage Undertaker, Maintenance or Management Company 
(private company or Trust) or individual property owners, or any other 
arrangements, including maintenance responsibilities resting with individual 
property owners, to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage scheme 
throughout its lifetime. These details shall be provided as part of a handover 
pack for subsequent purchasers and owners of the property/premises; 
k) Include a verification report carried out by a qualified drainage engineer 
demonstrating that the drainage system has been constructed as per the 
approved scheme (or detail any minor variations thereof), to be submitted 
immediately following construction to be approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. This Report shall include plans and details of all key drainage 
elements (surface water drainage network, attenuation devices/areas, flow 
restriction devices and outfalls) and details of any management company 
managing the SuDS measures thereafter. 
 
The above sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details before the use hereby permitted is commenced in 
accordance with a timetable to be submitted and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the details submitted for this condition. The 

Page 29



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

sustainable drainage measures shall be maintained in the approved condition 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; 
to prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, 
habitat and amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water 
drainage system can be, and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient 
manner. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning 

Policy Framework, Policy SP6 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-
2041, Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006) 
and SuDS Supplementary Planning Document (Dec 2018). A pre-condition is 
necessary because insufficient detailed information accompanies the 
application; sustainable drainage measures may require work to be undertaken 
throughout the construction phase and so it is necessary to approve these 
details before any development takes place. 

 

5.  Parking Layout at 187 City Road 

No development shall take place until a plan showing the parking and turning 
area indicated at 187 City Road as indicated on the submitted swept path 
drawing has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Thereafter the parking and turning spaces shall be kept available for 
parking and manoeuvring (of private cars) at all times. 

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, 
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect 
road safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies SP19 and DM44 of the 
West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. A pre-commencement condition 
is required as it applies to land outside the application site and within the control 
or ownership of the applicant, and to ensure that satisfactory parking can be 
provided for 187 City Road, before development begins on the site, as the 
residential curtilage to that dwelling is reduced by the development. 

6.  Stret Lighting Column 

No dwelling shall be first occupied until details of the proposed relocation of the 
street lighting column adjacent to the access have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The street lighting column 
shall be installed in the approved position and be in working order before the first 
dwelling is occupied. 

Reason:  To ensure that the street is adequately lit for the safety of road users 
and pedestrians and to ensure that there is adequate visibility at the access, in 
the interests of highway safety. This condition is applied in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy SP19 of the West Berkshire 
Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

7.  Removal of the bus stop 

No dwelling shall be first occupied until the bus stop and bus stop markings on 
the carriageway closest to the application site on City Road have been removed. 

Reason:  To ensure that there is adequate visibility and manoeuvrability at the 
access , in the interests of highway safety. This condition is applied in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy SP19 of 
the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

Page 30



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

8. Construction Method Statement 

No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement 
(CMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter the demolition and construction works shall incorporate 
and be undertaken in accordance with the approved CMS. The CMS shall 
include measures for: 

(a) A site set-up plan during the works; 

(b) Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 

(c) Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

(d) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 

(e) Erection and maintenance of security hoarding including any decorative 
displays and/or facilities for public viewing; 

(f) Wheel washing facilities; 

(g) Measures to control dust, dirt, noise, vibrations, odours, surface water 
run-off, and pests/vermin during construction; 

(h) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works; 

The Construction Method Statement will include the following limitations 

(1) No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following 
hours, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays; 

8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays; 

No work shall be carried out at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

(2)  No deliveries to the site shall take place between 0800-0900 and 1700-
1800 

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers, and 
in the interests of highway safety. This condition is applied in accordance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies SP19, DM5 and 
DM30 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. A pre-
commencement condition is required because the CMS must be adhered to 
during all demolition and construction operations. 

 

9. Access Construction 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no 
construction activities other than those directly related and necessary to 
construct the construction access shall take place until the construction access 
has been completed in accordance with the approved drawings. Thereafter the 

Page 31



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

construction access shall be maintained in their approved condition, and the 
wheel washing arrangements set out in the approved Construction Method 
Statement shall be implemented, at all times during demolition and/or 
construction activities. Visibility splays shall be kept free of all obstructions to 
visibility above a height of 0.6 metres above carriageway level at all times. 

Reason: To ensure that safe access arrangements are provided and maintained 
during all demolition/construction activities, in the interests of highway safety. 
This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, and Policy SP19 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-
2041. 

10. Visibility Splays before Development 

No development shall take place until visibility splays of 2.4 metres x 43 metres 
have been provided in both directions at the new access onto City Road in 
accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter the visibility splays shall be kept 
free of all obstructions to visibility above a height of 0.6 metres above 
carriageway level at all times. 

Reason: To ensure there is adequate visibility at the access, in the interests of 
highway safety. This condition is applied in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework, and Policy SP19 of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
Review 2023-2041. A pre-commencement condition is required as the provision 
of the access is a first development requirement and the visibility splays are 
required throughout the construction phase of the development. 

11. Parking Provision 

No dwelling shall be first occupied until vehicle parking and turning spaces for 
that dwelling have been completed in accordance with the approved plans 
(including any surfacing arrangements and marking out). Thereafter the parking 
and turning spaces shall be kept available for [parking and manoeuvring of 
private cars at all times. 

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, 
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect 
road safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies SP19 and DM44 of the 
West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

 

12. Electric Vehicle Charging Points 

No dwelling shall be first occupied until an electric vehicle charging point has 
been provided for that dwelling in accordance with details that have first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, 
the charging points shall be maintained, and kept available and operational for 
electric vehicles at all times. 

Reason: To secure the provision of charging points to encourage the use of 
electric vehicles. This condition is applied in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework, and Policies SP19 and DM44 of the West Berkshire 
Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

13. Cycle Parking 

No dwelling shall be first occupied until cycle parking/storage facilities for that 
dwelling have been provided in accordance with the approved drawings. 

Page 32



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

Thereafter the facilities shall be maintained and kept available for that purpose at 
all times. 

Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking/storage facilities in order to 
encourage the use of cycles and reduce reliance on private motor vehicles. This 
condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, 
Policies SP19 and DM44 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041, 
the Quality Design SPD, and the Council’s Cycle and Motorcycle Advice and 
Standards for New Development (November 2014). 

 

14.  Soft Landscaping 

No dwelling shall be first occupied until a detailed soft landscaping scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
soft landscaping scheme shall include detailed plans, planting and retention 
schedule, programme of works, and any other supporting information. All soft 
landscaping works shall be completed in accordance with the approved soft 
landscaping scheme within the first planting season following completion of 
building operations / first occupation of the new dwelling (whichever occurs first). 
Any trees, shrubs, plants or hedges planted in accordance with the approved 
scheme which are removed, die, or become diseased or become seriously 
damaged within five years of completion of this completion of the approved soft 
landscaping scheme shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, 
shrubs or hedges of a similar size and species to that originally approved. 

Reason: Landscaping is an integral element of achieving high quality design. 
This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Policies SP7, SP8 and SP10 of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
Review 2023-2041, and the Quality Design SPD. 

15.  Compliance with existing detailed biodiversity method statements, 
strategies, plans and schemes  

All ecological measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details contained in “Ecological assessment” (January 2025, Ecology Solutions) 
as already submitted with the planning application and agreed in principle with 
the Local Planning Authority prior to determination.  

Reason: To secure the mitigation and enhancement measures proposed with the 
application, required to conserve and enhance biodiversity. This condition is 
applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 
SP11 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

16. Construction Environmental Management Plan 

No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation 
clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
CEMP shall include the following: 

(a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.  
(b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”.  
(c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 

practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be 
provided as a set of method statements).  

(d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 
features.  

Page 33



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

(e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be 
present on site to oversee works. 

(f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.  
(g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works 

(ECoW) or similarly competent person.  
(h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.  

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the 
construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  

Reason: To avoid harm to protected species during demolition/construction and 
preparatory operations. This condition is applied in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy SP11 of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
Review 2023-2041. A pre-commencement condition is required because the 
CEMP will need to be adhered to throughout construction. 

17.  Habitat Management and Monitoring Plan in accordance with Biodiversity 
Gain Plan 

The development shall not commence until a Habitat Management and 
Monitoring Plan (the HMMP), prepared in accordance with the approved 
Biodiversity Gain Plan (BGP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The HMMP shall be prepared to accompany the 
Biodiversity Gain Plan, and shall be submitted for approval alongside or after the 
submission the BGP. 

(NOTE: In accordance with Paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, this planning permission is subject to the condition 
(“the biodiversity gain condition”) that the development may not be begun unless 
(a) a biodiversity gain plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and (b) 
the planning authority has approved the plan.  This is deemed to be applied by 
Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and is not replicated 
on this decision notice. Full details are set out in the informative below.) 

The HMMP shall include: 

 

(1)       a non-technical summary; 

 

(2)       the roles and responsibilities of the people or organisation(s) delivering 
the HMMP; 

 

(3)       the planned habitat creation and enhancement works to create or 
improve habitat to achieve the biodiversity net gain in accordance with the 
approved Biodiversity Gain Plan; 

 

(4)       the management measures to maintain habitat in accordance with the 
approved Biodiversity Gain Plan for a period of 30 years from the completion of 
development; and 

 

Page 34



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

(5)       the monitoring methodology and frequency in respect of the created or 
enhanced habitat to be submitted to the local planning authority, 

The details provided in relation to point (5) shall ensure that, as a minimum, 
monitoring takes place in 2 years, 5 years,10 years,15 years, 20 years, 25 years, 
30 years following completion of the development.  For the purposes of this 
condition, completion of development shall be taken as the ‘completion of 4no. 
residential dwellings comprising 4 x 2-bedroom semi-detached houses including 
2no. parking spaces per dwelling and private gardens.” 

No occupation shall take place until: 

(6)       the habitat creation and enhancement works set out in the approved 
HMMP have been completed; and 

(7)       a completion report, evidencing the completed habitat enhancements, 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Notice in writing shall be given to the Council when the: 

(8)       HMMP has been implemented; and 

(9)       habitat creation and enhancement works as set out in the HMMP have 
been completed.  

The created and/or enhanced habitat specified in the approved HMMP shall be 
managed and maintained in accordance with the approved HMMP. 

Monitoring reports shall be submitted to local planning authority in writing in 
accordance with the methodology and frequency specified in the approved 
HMMP. 

Where monitoring identifies the required habitat condition is not being 
maintained in accordance with the Biodiversity Gain Plan, the submission to the 
Local Planning Authority shall include any necessary remedial measures, and 
thereafter any such measures shall be caried out within a timescale agreed with 
the Local Planning Authority.   Supplemental reports may be required pursuant to 
this condition where necessary. 

Where monitoring identifies the required habitat condition is not being 
maintained in accordance with the Biodiversity Gain Plan, the submission to the 
Local Planning Authority shall include any necessary remedial measures, and 
thereafter any such measures shall be caried out within a timescale agreed with 
the Local Planning Authority.   Supplemental reports may be required pursuant to 
this condition where necessary. 

Reason:   To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain on site in 
accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  A 
pre-commencement condition is required because the habitat and management 
arrangements need to be determined before existing habitats are affected. 

18.  Sustainability measures 
 
No development shall take place (except for demolition and site clearance) 
until detailed sustainability measures have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  These details shall be informed by 
the measures set out in the Design and Access Statement.  
Thereafter, the development hereby permitted shall incorporate the approved 
sustainability measures.  No dwelling shall be first occupied unitl all 

Page 35



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

sustainability measures have been provided in full accordance with these 
approved details.  
 
Reason: To secure the sustainability measures that the development is 
contributing to the district’s response to climate change in accordance with 
Policy SP5 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041.  A pre-
commencement condition is required because the details must be approved 
in advance so that they can be incorporated into the development. 
 

19.  Energy Statement 

No development shall take place until a full detailed Energy Statement has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
This statement shall include full details of how the development will comply 
with the requirements of Policy DM4 of the West Berkshire Local Plan 
Review 2023-2041. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in full 
accordance with the approved details, and until all approved measures have 
been completed.  

Reason: To secure sustainable construction measures in accordance with 
Policy DM4 of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041. 

 

Heads of Terms for Section 106 Agreement 

2. Public open space 
 
The agreement shall set out the means by which the area of publicly accessible 
open space identified on the site plans will be managed by either a public body or a 
management company to ensure the long term maintenance and accessibility of the 
site.  The agreement will include details of the funding arrangements to the public 
body or management company. 

 

Refusal Reasons 

2. Planning obligation 
The application fails to provide an appropriate planning obligation to secure the 
publicly accessible open space to ensure that it is available for the public benefit in 
perpetuity.  This open space is required as a replacement for the land occupied by 
the development in the interests of the community, and the failure to provide it is 
contrary to Policy SP7  of the West Berkshire Local Plan Review 2023-2041 
 

 

Informatives 

1. Proactive 
 
This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable 
development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to 
secure high quality appropriate development.  In this application whilst there has 
been a need to balance conflicting considerations, the local planning authority has 
worked proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered to be 

Page 36



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

a development which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions 
of the area. 

2. CIL Liability 
 
The development hereby approved results in a requirement to make payments to 
the Council as part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) procedure.  A Liability 
Notice setting out further details, and including the amount of CIL payable will be 
sent out separately from this Decision Notice.  You are advised to read the Liability 
Notice and ensure that a Commencement Notice is submitted to the authority prior 
to the commencement of the development.  Failure to submit the Commencement 
Notice will result in the loss of any exemptions claimed, and the loss of any right to 
pay by instalments, and additional costs to you in the form of surcharges.  For 
further details see the website at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil 
 

3.  Biodiversity Net Gain Plan Required  
The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 is that planning permission granted for the development of land in England is 
deemed to have been granted subject to the condition "(the biodiversity gain 
condition") that development may not begin unless: 
(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and 
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan. 
 
The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a 
Biodiversity Gain Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be West 
Berkshire District Council. 
 
There are statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the 
biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below. 
 
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will 
require the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun 
because none of the statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements listed below 
are considered to apply. 
 
If the permission which has been granted has the effect of requiring or permitting the 
development to proceed in phases, the modifications in respect of the biodiversity 
gain condition which are set out in Part 2 of the Biodiversity Gain (Town and Country 
Planning) (Modifications and Amendments) (England) Regulations 2024 apply. 
 
In summary: Biodiversity gain plans are required to be submitted to, and approved 
by, the planning authority before development may be begun (the overall plan), and 
before each phase of development may be begun (phase plans).   
 
EXEMPTIONS AND TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The following are the statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect 
of the biodiversity gain condition. 
 
1. The application for planning permission was made before 12 February 2024. 
 
2. The planning permission relates to development to which section 73A of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (planning permission for development already 
carried out) applies. 
 
3. The planning permission was granted on an application made under section 73 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 

Page 37

http://www.westberks/


 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

(i)the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning permission 
relates* was granted before 12 February 2024; or 
(ii)the application for the original planning permission* to which the section 73 
planning permission relates was made before 12 February 2024. 
 
4. The permission which has been granted is for development which is exempt 
being: 
 
4.1 Development which is not 'major development' (within the meaning of article 2(1) 
of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015) where: 
i) the application for planning permission was made before 2 April 2024; 
ii) planning permission is granted which has effect before 2 April 2024; or 
iii) planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 where the original permission to which the 
section 73 permission relates* was exempt by virtue of (i) or (ii). 
 
4.2 Development below the de minimis threshold, meaning development which: 
i) does not impact an onsite priority habitat (a habitat specified in a list published 
under section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006); and 
ii) impacts less than 25 square metres of onsite habitat that has biodiversity value 
greater than zero and less than 5 metres in length of onsite linear habitat (as defined 
in the statutory metric). 
 
4.3 Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of 
article 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015. A "householder application" means an application 
for planning permission for development for an existing dwellinghouse, or 
development within the curtilage of such a dwellinghouse for any purpose incidental 
to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not an application for change of use 
or an application to change the number of dwellings in a building. 
 
4.4 Development of a biodiversity gain site, meaning development which is 
undertaken solely or mainly for the purpose of fulfilling, in whole or in part, the 
Biodiversity Gain Planning condition which applies in relation to another 
development, (no account is to be taken of any facility for the public to access or to 
use the site for educational or recreational purposes, if that access or use is 
permitted without the payment of a fee). 
 
4.5 Self and Custom Build Development, meaning development which: 
i) consists of no more than 9 dwellings; 
ii) is carried out on a site which has an area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and 
iii) consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or custom housebuilding (as 
defined in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015). 
 
4.6 Development forming part of, or ancillary to, the high speed railway transport 
network (High Speed 2) comprising connections between all or any of the places or 
parts of the transport network specified in section 1(2) of the High Speed Rail 
(Preparation) Act 2013. 
 
* "original planning permission means the permission to which the section 73 
planning permission relates" means a planning permission which is the first in a 
sequence of two or more planning permissions, where the second and any 
subsequent planning permissions are section 73 planning permissions. 
 
IRREPLACEABLE HABITAT 
 

Page 38



 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

If the onsite habitat includes irreplaceable habitat (within the meaning of the 
Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitat) Regulations 2024) there are 
additional requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans. 
 
The Biodiversity Gain Plan must include, in addition to information about steps taken 
or to be taken to minimise any adverse effect of the development on the habitat, 
information on arrangements for compensation for any impact the development has 
on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat. 
 
The planning authority can only approve a Biodiversity Gain Plan if satisfied that the 
adverse effect of the development on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat is 
minimised and appropriate arrangements have been made for the purpose of 
compensating for any impact which do not include the use of biodiversity credits. 
 
THE EFFECT OF SECTION 73D OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 
1990 
 
If planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (application to develop land without 
compliance with conditions previously attached) and a Biodiversity Gain Plan was 
approved in relation to the previous planning permission ("the earlier Biodiversity 
Gain Plan") there are circumstances when the earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan is 
regarded as approved for the purpose of discharging the biodiversity gain condition 
subject to which the section 73 planning permission is granted. 
 
Those circumstances are that the conditions subject to which the section 73 
permission is granted: 
 
i) do not affect the post-development value of the onsite habitat as specified in the 
earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan, and 
 
ii) in the case of planning permission for a development where all or any part of the 
onsite habitat is irreplaceable habitat the conditions do not change the effect of the 
development on the biodiversity of that onsite habitat (including any arrangements 
made to compensate for any such effect) as specified in the earlier Biodiversity Gain 
Plan. 
 

4. Access Construction  
 
The Asset Management team, West Berkshire District Council, Environment 
Department, Council Offices, Market Street, Newbury, RG14 5LD, or 
highwaysassetmanagement@westberks.gov.uk should be contacted to agree the 
access construction details and to grant a licence before any work is carried out 
within the highway.   A formal application should be made, allowing at least four (4) 
weeks’ notice, to obtain details of underground services on the applicant’s behalf. 
 

5.  Damage to footways, cycleways and verges 
 
The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act, 1986, Part II, Clause 9, 
which enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the 
footway, cycleway or grass verge arising during building operations. 
 

6.  Excavation in close proximity to the highway 
In order to protect the stability of the highway it is advised that no excavation be 
carried out within 15 metres of a public highway without the written approval of the 
Highway Authority. Written approval would be obtained from the Asset Manager, 

Page 39

mailto:highwaysassetmanagement@westberks.gov.uk


 

E 

West Berkshire Council Eastern Area Planning Committee 8th October 2025 

West Berkshire District Council, Environment Department, Council Offices, Market 
Street, Newbury, RG14 5LD or highwaysmaintenance@westberks.gov.uk 
 

7.  Official Postal Address 
Please complete and online street naming and numbering application form at 
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/snn to obtain an official postal address(s) once 
development has started on site. Applying for an official address promptly at the 
beginning of development will be beneficial for obtaining services. Street naming 
and numbering is a statutory function of the local authority.  
 
 

8.  Street Lighting 
The street lighting relocation will also need to be agreed with the Council’s street 
lighting team who can be contacted at lighting@westberks.gov.uk 
 

9.  Bus Stop Removal 
 
 The applicant should contact Matthew Metcalfe, Senior Transport Officer to agree 
the works for the removal of the bus stop and markings.   Email: 
matthew.metcalfe@westberks.gov.uk 
 
 

 

 

Page 40

mailto:highwaysmaintenance@westberks.gov.uk
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/snn
mailto:lighting@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.metcalfe@westberks.gov.uk


Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings .

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

Not Set

25 September 2025

1:8338

25/00140/FUL

Land Adj. To Linnet Close, Linnet Close, Tilehurst, RG31 4SR

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Plans and drawings relevant to reports 
submitted to Eastern Area Planning Committee 

 
Wednesday 8th October 2025 at 6.30pm 

 
 
 

 At Council Chamber, Council Offices, Market Street, 
Newbury, RG14 5LD 

 
& 
 

And via Zoom 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

[to be read in conjunction with the main agenda] 
 
 
 
 

Please note: 
 
 All drawings are copied at A4 and consequently are not scalable 
 
 Most relevant plans have been included – however, in some cases, it 

may be necessary for the case officer to make a selection 
 
 All drawings are available to view at www.westberks.gov.uk  

 
 

Page 43



 
 
25/00140/FUL  
Land Adjacent To Linnet Close 
Linnet Close 
Tilehurst 
Reading 

 

Page 44



CITY ROAD

TC
B

BITTERN
E AVEN

U
E

97.2m

LB

98.6m

100.6m

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

95.0m

O
rdnance S

urvey, (c) C
row

n Copyright 2023. A
ll rights reserved. Licence num

ber 100022432

19
7

H
ouse

146

19
9

1

1

1 t
o 4

25

Brow

34

2

142

13

160

18
7

1 to 5

132

17
3

4

126

16

C
ressw

ells

18
1

171

16a

19
9a

15

2a

8

44

23

©
 ECE

 Architecture Lim
ited. N

o dim
ensions to be scaled from

 draw
ing except for the purposes of Planning A

pplications. The contractor should check all dim
ensions on site. It is the contractors responsibility to ensure com

pliance w
ith B

uilding R
egulations.

CDM
 2015 Health & Safety Inform

ation:
This inform

ation relates only to 'S
ignificant H

azards' identified on this drawing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the Designer's H
azard R

egister.

R
ev

Dr
Ch

Date
R

evision D
etails

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title
Scale

D
raw

ing Title

C
A

D
 Plot date:

Job No

D
raw

n
Date

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

Status

7502 - site layout.dw
g

2/06/2025 - 13:44:39

1:1250 @
 A3

m
etres

10
20

40
30

50
w

w
w

.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, S

E
1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E
 london@

ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

APP
R

O
VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

 Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Location Plan
KP

D
T

10.10.24

7502
PL01

D

N
Application Site B

oundary

CITY RO
AD

O
w

nership Site Boundary

A
09.01.25

O
w

nership site boundary added
KP

D
T

B
24.01.25

Draw
ing am

ended following Planners com
m

ents
KP

D
T

C
24.03.25

Draw
ing am

ended following Highw
ay C

om
m

ents
KP

D
T

D
02.06.25

Draw
ing am

ended following Highw
ay C

om
m

ents
to N

o.187
KP

D
T

Page 45



CITY ROAD

AVEN
U

E

97.2m

LB

98.6m

100.6m

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

95.0m

19
7

H
ouse

146

19
9

1

1

1 t
o 4

25

Brow

2

142

13

160

18
7

1 to 5

132

173

4

C
ressw

ells

18
1

1

19
9a

15

2a

8

23

19
7

H
ouse

146

19
9

1

1

1 t
o 4

25

Brow

AVEN
U

E

2

142

13

160

LB

1 to 5

132

173

4

C
ressw

ells

18
1

1

19
9a

15

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

2a

8

23

CITY RO
AD

1500

15374

5698

7416

15610

15000

19328

37382

1000

1200

©
 ECE

 Architecture Lim
ited. N

o dim
ensions to be scaled from

 draw
ing except for the purposes of Planning A

pplications. The contractor should check all dim
ensions on site. It is the contractors responsibility to ensure com

pliance w
ith B

uilding R
egulations.

CDM
 2015 Health & Safety Inform

ation:
This inform

ation relates only to 'S
ignificant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the Designer's H
azard R

egister.

R
ev

D
r

Ch
Date

R
evision D

etails
C

lient's N
am

e

Job Title
Scale

D
raw

ing Title

C
A

D Plot date:

Job No

D
raw

n
Date

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

Status

7502 - site layout.dw
g

2/06/2025 - 12:02:30

1:500 @
 A3

m
etres

10
20

15
5

w
ww

.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, S

E
1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 Brighton Road, W
orthing

W
est S

ussex, BN
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E sussex@
ecearchitecture.com

W
estw

orks, Beacon Tow
er

C
olston S

treet, Bristol, BS
1 4X

E
T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@

ecew
estw

orks.com
APP

R
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

 Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Block Plan
KP

D
T

04.11.24

7502
P

L02
D

N

Site Area = 0.13H
a

(0.32 acres)

Plot 1

P
lot 2

P
lot 3

Plot 4

Application Site Boundary

proposed area
of accessible
open space

S
ite

Access

O
w

nership Site Boundary

A
09.01.25

O
w

nership site boundary added
KP

D
T

B
10.01.25

Text updated after com
m

ents
K

P
D

T
C

24.03.25
D

raw
ing am

ended follow
ing H

ighw
ay C

om
m

ents
K

P
D

T

D
02.06.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

to N
o.187

KP
D

T

Page 46



Plot 4
2B

4P
G

arden:
142 sqm

cs

4

Bins
C

ollection
Point

Plot 3
2B4P

G
arden:

89 sqm
Plot 2

2B
4P

G
arden:

89 sqm

Plot 1
2B

4P
G

arden:
123 sqm

New hedgerow

4

cs

cs

bs1

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

3
3

2
2

1
1

bs2

bs4

bs3

cs

proposed area
of accessible
open space

P
atio

P
atio

Patio

Patio

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

New brick wall 1 .2m
 with plant ing up to 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

Existing Fence

CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fen ce C
H

LK
 H

T:1. 8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

New
 cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New brick

pier

Existing cbf 1.8m

Exist ing  F ence C
H LK H

T:1 .8 M

New brick

piers with  gate

for bins access

New hedgerow

N
o.187

New brick

piers and new

brick wall 1.2m

grass

N
e w

 hedgero w

canopy

canopy

canopy

canopy

19
71

2

142

18
1

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

CITY RO
AD

New hedgerow

and 5no. m
edium

 site trees

2600

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
24/03/2025 - 15:41:01

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

Land off Linnet C
lose, R

eading

B
oundary Plan

H
W

D
T

04.11.24

7321
PL06

C

N

Boundary Treatm
ent Key

1200m
m

 High Proposed Brick w
all (Brick to m

atch house)

1200m
m

 High Proposed Brick Piers

1800m
m

 High Proposed Tim
ber fencing/gates

Existing boundary fence

N
ew

 m
edium

 sized trees

A
08.01.25

Trees and hedgerow
 added to im

prove B
N

G
KP

D
T

B
10.01.25

Text updated after com
m

ents
KP

D
T

C
24.03.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

KP
D

T

Page 47



*
Plot 4

2B
4P

G
arden:

142 sqm
cs

4

Bins
C

ollection
Point

Plot 3
2B4P

G
arden:

89 sqm
Plot 2

2B
4P

G
arden:

89 sqm

Plot 1
2B

4P
G

arden:
123 sqm

New hedgerow

4

cs

cs

bs1

2.4m
 x 43m

 Visibility Splay

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

3
3

2
2

1
1

bs2

bs4

bs3

cs

proposed area
of accessible
open space

P
atio

P
atio

Patio

Patio

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

New brick wall 1.2m
 with planting up to 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

Existing Fence

CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Ex istin g Fence  C
H

LK
 H

T:1.8 M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

New
 cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New brick

pier

Existing cbf 1.8m

Exist in g F en ce  C
H LK H

T :1 .8M

New brick

piers with gate

for bins access

New hedgerow

New brick

piers and new

brick wall 1.2m

grass

N
ew

 he dgero w

canopy

canopy

canopy

canopy

19
71

2

142

18
1

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

CITY RO
AD

New hedgerow

and 5no. m
edium

 site trees

2.4m
 x 43m

 Visibility Splay
N

o.187

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
2/06/2025 - 11:46:54

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Proposed D
etail and Boundary

Site Layout

K
P

D
T

04.11.24

7502
PL08

D

N

D
etail Site Layout Key

                     R
ecycling Storage

                    Refuse Storage

                    Food W
aste S

torage

                    Refuse Collection Point

                    Residents D
ragging Distance

cs

*

Site Boundary

C
ycle store

B
ins store

O
w

nership boundary

E
xisting H

edge on Site

Proposed planting and trees

bs

Paving B
locks

Path

P
roposed H

edge to be added on Site

N
ew

 m
edium

 sized trees

A
08.01.25

Trees and hedgerow
 added to im

prove B
N

G
KP

D
T

B
10.01.25

Text updated after com
m

ents
KP

D
T

C
24.03.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

KP
D

T

D
02.06.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

to N
o.187

KP
D

T

Page 48



19
71

2

142

18
1

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

CITY RO
AD

O
w

nership Boundary

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
24/03/2025 - 13:32:57

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Topographical Survey

K
P

D
T

10.10.24

7502
PL07

A

N

Site Layout K
ey

Site Boundary

*This topographical survey w
as produced by W

A
R

N
ER

 S
U

R
VE

YS

A
24.03.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

KP
D

T

Page 49



S
ide Elevation

R
ear Elevation

Plot 2
Plot 2

Plot 1

W
C

dw

f/f St.
0.6sqm

Living Area
17.3sqm

Kitchen/
D

ining
17.2sqm

b

a

b b

c

W
C

dw

f/f

H
all

St.
0.6sqm

Living Area
17.3sqm

Kitchen/
D

ining
17.2sqm

b

b b

c

H
all

a

G
round Floor Plan

Type - 2B4P sem
i detached - right

Plot 2
Plot 1

canopy over

canopy over

1

Side Elevation
Front Elevation
Type - 2B4P sem

i detached
Plot 2

2

Plot 1
Plot 1

14.1sqm
B

edroom
 1

14sqm
B

edroom
 2 St.

0.4sqm

S
t.

1sqm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h
b

b

b
ff

e

14.1sqm
Bedroom

 1

14sqm
Bedroom

 2 St.
0.4sqm

S
t.

1sqm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h
b

b

b
f

f

e

First Floor P
lan

Plot 1

First Floor P
lan

Plot 2

O
bscured

glazing

O
bscured

glazing

Landing
Bathroom

Bathroom
Landing

canopy

canopy

B
u

ilding
 reg

ulatio
n

 M
4(2) C

he
cklist:

a.
C

irculation
 a

reas &
 internal d

oo
rw

ays to
 co

m
ply w

ith
 P

a
rt

M
4(2)d

iag
ram

 2.3.
b

.
M

in. 30
0 n

ib
 is p

ro
vid

ed
 to th

e lead
ing ed

ge.
c.

A
 1200

 m
m

 m
in. clear sp

ace is p
ro

vid
ed in fro

nt o
f an

d
b

etw
een all kitchen u

nits.
d

.
G

lazing
 to

 the
 p

rincipa
l living

 ro
om

 w
ind

ow
 starts a m

ax. of
850

 m
m

 above flo
or level.

e.
B

ed
roo

m
 p

ro
vid

e a clear access rou
te of 750m

m
 w

id
e fro

m
the do

or to w
in

dow
.

f.
A

t le
ast one do

ub
le be

dro
om

 can p
ro

vid
e a clear acce

ss
zone a m

in. 750
m

m
 to bo

th sid
es and th

e foo
t o

f th
e b

ed.
g

.
A

ll sing
le an

d tw
in

 bed
room

 can pro
vide a clear acce

ss
zone a m

in. 750
m

m
 w

ide to one sid
e of each b

ed
 .

h.
D

w
ellin

g
 has a b

ath
ro

om
 in line w

ith d
iag

ram
 2.7

 that is
locate

d o
n the sa

m
e

 flo
or as the do

ub
le bedro

om
.

i.
S

w
itches, so

ckets, ven
tila

tion
 and

 service co
ntro

ls sho
uld

b
e at a heigh

t u
se

ab
le b

y all (i.e
. b

etw
ee

n 450
 and

 120
0m

m
from

 th
e floor).

j.
W

here the
 p

arking
 is co

m
m

unal at least one space shou
ld

b
e a standard

 pa
rking

 b
ay that can b

e w
id

en
ed to

 3.3m
w

hich w
ill be

 sh
ow

n on the site p
la

n.

M
aterial Key

1.
G

rey/buff m
ulti brick

2.
Projecting brick detail

3.
Tile hanging - green m

ix
4.

M
etal P

PC
 canopy to front and rear elevations w

ith
flush detail to flank elevations
(agate grey) R

AL 7038
5.

D
etails colour (agate grey) R

AL 7038
6.

D
oor w

ith painted finish - colours vary to m
atch tile

7.
Zinc roof - colour TBC

8.
O

bscured glassing
9.

M
etal fram

e flush casem
ent w

indow
s

colour (agate grey) R
AL 7038

10.
R

ainw
ater goods - dark grey colour

4

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
27/11/2024 - 12:35:07

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

H
ousetype P

lans and Elevations
2B

4P
 sem

i detached Plots 1-2

K
P

D
T

04.11.24

7502
PL09

-

2
1

3
9

4
6

7

5 5
88

Page 50



14.1sqm
Bedroom

 1

14sqm
Bedroom

 2

S
t.

0.4sqm

St.
1sqm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h
b

b

b
ff

e

14.1sqm
B

edroom
 1

14sqm
Bedroom

 2

S
t.

0.4sqm

St.
1sqm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h
b

b

b
ff

e

e
e

Landing
Landing

Bathroom
Bathroom

First Floor Plan

Plot 4
Plot 3

O
bscured

glazing

O
bscured

glazing

canopy

canopy

4

S
ide Elevation

Front Elevation
Type - 2B4P sem

i detached
P

lot 4

3

Plot 3
Plot 3

W
C

dw

f/f

St.
0.6sqm

Living Area
17.3sqm

Kitchen/
D

ining
17.2sqm

b

a

b b

c

W
C

dw

f/f

H
all

S
t.

0.6sqm

Living A
rea

17.3sqm

Kitchen/
D

ining
17.2sqm

b

b b

c

H
allacanopy over

canopy over

G
round Floor Plan

Type - 2B
4P

 sem
i detached - right

Plot 4
Plot 3

S
ide E

levation
R

ear Elevation

Plot 4
Plot 4

Plot 3

B
u

ilding
 reg

ulatio
n

 M
4(2) C

he
cklist:

a.
C

irculation
 a

reas &
 internal d

oo
rw

ays to
 co

m
ply w

ith
 P

a
rt

M
4(2)d

iag
ram

 2.3.
b

.
M

in. 30
0 n

ib
 is p

ro
vid

ed
 to th

e lead
ing ed

ge.
c.

A
 1200

 m
m

 m
in. clear sp

ace is p
ro

vid
ed in fro

nt o
f an

d
b

etw
een all kitchen u

nits.
d

.
G

lazing
 to

 the
 p

rincipa
l living

 ro
om

 w
ind

ow
 starts a m

ax. of
850

 m
m

 above flo
or level.

e.
B

ed
roo

m
 p

ro
vid

e a clear access rou
te of 750m

m
 w

id
e fro

m
the do

or to w
in

dow
.

f.
A

t le
ast one do

ub
le be

dro
om

 can p
ro

vid
e a clear acce

ss
zone a m

in. 750
m

m
 to bo

th sid
es and th

e foo
t o

f th
e b

ed.
g

.
A

ll sing
le an

d tw
in

 bed
room

 can pro
vide a clear acce

ss
zone a m

in. 750
m

m
 w

ide to one sid
e of each b

ed
 .

h.
D

w
ellin

g
 has a b

ath
ro

om
 in line w

ith d
iag

ram
 2.7

 that is
locate

d o
n the sa

m
e

 flo
or as the do

ub
le bedro

om
.

i.
S

w
itches, so

ckets, ven
tila

tion
 and

 service co
ntro

ls sho
uld

b
e at a heigh

t u
se

ab
le b

y all (i.e
. b

etw
ee

n 450
 and

 120
0m

m
from

 th
e floor).

j.
W

here the
 p

arking
 is co

m
m

unal at least one space shou
ld

b
e a standard

 pa
rking

 b
ay that can b

e w
id

en
ed to

 3.3m
w

hich w
ill be

 sh
ow

n on the site p
la

n.

M
aterial Key

1.
G

rey/buff m
ulti brick

2.
Projecting brick detail

3.
Tile hanging - green m

ix
4.

M
etal P

PC
 canopy to front and rear elevations w

ith
flush detail to flank elevations
(agate grey) R

AL 7038
5.

D
etails colour (agate grey) R

AL 7038
6.

D
oor w

ith painted finish - colours vary to m
atch tile

7.
Zinc roof - colour TBC

8.
O

bscured glassing
9.

M
etal fram

e flush casem
ent w

indow
s

colour (agate grey) R
AL 7038

10.
R

ainw
ater goods - dark grey colour

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
24/01/2025 - 16:24:46

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

2

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

H
ousetype P

lans and Elevations
2B

4P
 sem

i detached Plots 3-4

K
P

D
T

04.11.24

7502
PL10

A

1
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

8
4

5

A
24.01.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing Planners com
m

ents
KP

D
T

Page 51



dw

f/f

dw

f/f

canopy over

canopy over

canopy over

canopy ove r

Plot 4
2B

4P
G

arden:
142 sqm

cs

4

Bins
C

ollection
Point

Plot 3
2B4P

G
arden:

89 sqm
Plot 2

2B
4P

G
arden:

89 sqm

Plot 1
2B

4P
G

arden:
123 sqm

New hedgerow

4

cs

cs

bs1

2.4m
 x 43m

 Visibility Splay

dw

f/f

dw

f/f

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

3
3

2
2

1
1

bs2

bs4

bs3

cs

proposed area
of accessible
open space

P
atio

P
atio

Patio

Patio

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

New brick wall 1.2m
 with planting up to 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

Existing Fence

CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Ex istin g Fence  C
H

LK
 H

T:1.8 M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

New
 cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New brick

pier

Existing cbf 1.8m

Exist in g F en ce  C
H LK H

T :1 .8M

New brick

piers with gate

for bins access

New hedgerow

N
o.187

New brick

piers and new

brick wall 1.2m

grass

N
ew

 he dgero w

19
71

2

142

18
1

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

CITY RO
AD

New hedgerow

and 5no. m
edium

 site trees

2.4m
 x 43m

 Visibility Splay

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
24/03/2025 - 15:37:31

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

 Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Proposed Site Layout - G
round Floor

K
P

D
T

04.11.24

7502
PL03

C

N

Site Layout K
ey

Site Boundary
O

w
nership Boundary

Site
Access

N
ew

 m
edium

 sized trees

A
08.01.25

Trees and hedgerow
 added to im

prove B
N

G
KP

D
T

B
10.01.25

Text updated after com
m

ents
KP

D
T

C
24.03.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

KP
D

T

Page 52



135 0 x 1900 Stand ar d D oub le

135 0 x 1900 Standar d D
ouble

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

1350 x 1900 Standard 
D ouble

19
71

2

142

18
1

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

CITY RO
AD

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
24/03/2025 - 15:37:44

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

 Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Proposed Site Layout - First Floor

K
P

D
T

04.11.24

7502
PL04

C

N

N
o.187

Site Layout K
ey

Site Boundary
O

w
nership Boundary

Plot 4

Plot 3

Plot 2

Plot 1

BC
P

4
4

3
3

2
2

1
1

cs
cs

cs

bs1

bs2

bs4

bs3

cs

canopy

canopy

canopy

canopy

N
ew

 m
edium

 sized trees

A
08.01.25

Trees and hedgerow
 added to im

prove B
N

G
KP

D
T

B
10.01.25

Text updated after com
m

ents
KP

D
T

C
24.03.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

KP
D

T

Page 53



Plot 4
2B

4P
G

arden:
142 sqm

cs

4

Bins
C

ollection
Point

Plot 3
2B4P

G
arden:

89 sqm
Plot 2

2B
4P

G
arden:

89 sqm

P
lot 1

2B
4P

G
arden:

123 sqm

New hedgerow

4

cs

cs

bs1

2.4m
 x 43m

 Visibility Splay

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

3
3

2
2

1
1

bs2

bs4

bs3

cs

proposed area
of accessible
open space

Patio

Patio

Patio

Patio

Retained and enhanced hedgerow

New brick wall 1.2m
 with planting up to  1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

Existing Fence

CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

Exi sting F ence C
H

LK
 H

T :1.8M

Existing Fence CHLK HT:1.8M

New
 cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New cbf 1.8m

New brick

pier

Existing cbf 1.8m

Exist in g F ence C
H LK  H

T :1 .8M

New brick

piers with gate

for bins access

New hedgerow

N
o.187

New brick

piers and new

brick wall 1.2m

grass

N
e w

 he dgerow

canopy

canopy

canopy

canopy

19
71

1

2

142

18
1

LIN
N

ET C
LO

SE

CITY RO
AD

New hedgerow

and 5no. m
edium

 site trees

2600

2.4m
 x 43m

 Visibility Splay

C
AD

 Plot date:

R
ev

D
r

Ch

Job N
o

D
rawn

S
cale

D
rawing Title

C
lient's N

am
e

Job Title

D
ate

R
ev

C
hecked

D
raw

ing N
o

D
ate

R
evision D

etails

S
tatus

7502 - site layout.dwg
24/03/2025 - 15:40:32

CDM
 2015 H

ealth & Safety Inform
ation

This inform
ation relates only to 'Significant Hazards' identified on this draw

ing
and is to be read in conjunction w

ith the D
esigner's H

azard R
egister.

1:200 @
 A2

m
etres

4
8

12
20

16

w
w

w.ecearchitecture.com

76 G
reat Suffolk Street
London, SE1 0BL

T 0207 928 2773  E london@
ecearchitecture.com

London:

Sussex:

B
ristol:

64 - 68 B
righton R

oad, W
orthing

W
est Sussex, B

N
11 2EN

T 01903 248777 E
 sussex@

ecearchitecture.com
W

estw
orks, B

eacon Tow
er

C
olston Street, Bristol, BS1 4XE

T 0117 214 1101 E bristol@
ecew

estw
orks.com

APPR
O

VAL

M
r Jam

es C
ooper

Land off C
ity R

oad, Tilehurst

Proposed Site Layout - R
oof Plan

K
P

D
T

04.11.24

7502
PL05

D

N

Site Layout K
ey

Site Boundary Gross Site Area 0.13 Hectares

O
w

nership Boundary

Schedule of Accom
odation

Plot 1  G
IA

: 81.55 sqm
Plot 2  G

IA
: 81.55 sqm

Plot 3  G
IA

: 81.55 sqm
Plot 4  G

IA
: 81.55 sqm

C
ar Parking

 
2 spaces per H

ouse
C

ycle Parking
2 spaces per H

ouse in rear garden stores

Total: 4no. Dw
ellings

A
27.11.24

S
chedule of accom

m
odation added

KP
D

T

N
ew

 m
edium

 sized trees

B
08.01.25

Trees and hedegrow
 added to im

prove B
N

G
KP

D
T

C
10.01.25

Text updated after com
m

ents
KP

D
T

D
24.03.25

D
raw

ing am
ended follow

ing H
ighw

ay C
om

m
ents

KP
D

T

Page 54



Page 55



dw

f/f

St
.

0.
6s

qm

Ki
tc

he
n/

Di
ni

ng

17
.2

sq
m

b
a

b
c

dw

b
c

Ha
ll

a ca
no

py
 o

ve
r

1 t
o 4

18
7

canopy over

4
4

cs

3
3

2
bs4

bs3

New brick

pier
Existing cbf 1.8m

Exis ting  Fence  C
H

LK H
T:1 .8M

N
o.187

New brick

piers and new

brick wall 1.2m

14
sq

m
Be

dr
oo

m
 2

0.4

St
.

1s
qm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h
b

f

e

1350 x 1900 

e

canopy

1 t
o 4

CITY RO
AD

APPRO
XIM

ATE EXTEN
T O

F
H

ARD
STAN

DIN
G / PARKIN

G

W
C

dw

f/f

St
.

0.6
sq

m

Ki
tc

he
n/

Di
ni

ng

17
.2

sq
m

b
a

b

b

c

dw

f/f

Ha
ll

St
.

0.
6s

qm

Ki
tch

en
/

Di
nin

g

17
.2

sq
m

b

b
c

Ha
ll

a ca
no

py
 ov

er

18
7

canopy over

er

4
4

cs

a

b

3
3

2
2

1

bs4

bs3

.2m
 with planting up to 1.8m

New brick

pier

Existing cbf 1.8m

Exis ting  Fence  C
H

LK H
T:1 .8M

N
o.187

New brick

piers and new

brick wall 1.2m

14
sq

m
Be

dr
oo

m
 2

St
.

0.
4s

qm

St
.

1s
qm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h

b

b

b

f

f

e

14
sq

m
Be

dr
oo

m
 2St

.
1s

qm

1350 x 1900 Standard Double

h
b

f

e

La
nd

in
g

Ba
th

ro
om

canopy

CITY RO
AD

APPRO
XIM

ATE EXTEN
T O

F
H

ARDSTAN
DIN

G / PARKIN
G

Tel: 01256 637940

w
w

w
.i-transport.co.uk

The Square, Basing View
,

Basingstoke, Ham
pshire, RG

21 4EB

T:\Projects\19000 Series\19385ITB - Linnet Close Tilehurst\Tech\Acad\i-Transport Drawings\Working Drawings\GA\ITB19385-GA-004 (tracks exploded).dwg

DRAW
ING

 ISSUED
 FO

R FEASIBILITY CO
NSIDERATIO

N
 AN

D PLAN
NIN

G PURPO
SES

O
N

LY. DRAW
IN

G
 N

O
T TO

 BE USED FO
R CO

N
STRUCTIO

N
. I-TRAN

SPO
RT LLP

ACCEPT N
O

 RESPO
NSIBILITY FO

R ER
RO

RS M
ADE BY O

TH
ERS IN SCA

LING FRO
M

TH
IS D

RAW
IN

G. M
EASU

REM
EN

TS SHO
ULD BE TAKEN

 FRO
M

 FIGU
RED

DIM
ENSIO

N
S O

N
LY. CDM

 REQ
U

IREM
EN

TS CO
N

SID
ERED

 AT FEA
SIBILITY STAGE

O
N

LY. FU
RTHER CO

N
SID

ERATIO
N

 REQ
U

IRED BY D
ETA

ILED D
ESIG

N
 TEAM

.
©

CRO
W

N
 COPYRIGH

T 2024 O
S LICEN

CE N
o. 100044286.

0
5

10
20

SCALE BAR @
 1:200

2
1

4.369
0.007

0.963
2.503

0.91

Car
O

verall Length
4.376m

O
verall W

idth
1.857m

O
verall Body Height

1.466m
M

in Body Ground Clearance
0.228m

M
ax Track W

idth
1.591m

Lock to lock tim
e

4.00s
Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius

5.042m

Page 56


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	Minutes

	4.(1) 25/00140/FUL - Land Adjacent To Linnet Close, Tilehurst, Reading
	1a. 25_00140_FUL Map
	Full plans final


